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ASS£MBL YHAN JOHN W. MARKERT (CHAIRMAN): Good morning 

everyone. This is a meeting of the Subcommittee of the Alcoholic 

Beverage Control Study Commission. This Subcommittee deals with trade 

practices concerning all license holders. Today' s meeting will deal 

specifically with "C" and "D" licensees. We have extended leniency at 

prior meetings to go beyond the point of origin as to the call of the 

meeting. That leniency today, of course, will be extended. 

I wi 11 ask all who wi 11 address this Commit tee to please 

state your name and, if it would be difficult for us, at anytime to 

understand the correct spelling, we would appreciate it if you would 

spell your name also. If you are a licensee, or a license holder, we 

would appreciate it if you would give us that information. All 

proceedings here today will be taped, and that report will be put 

together for us to study in executive session. It will then be used 

for reporting to the Commission as a whole. 

I will now take the opportunity to introduce those members of 

the Study Commission who are present today. I am Assemblyman John 

Markert; I represent Bergen County, District 39; and, I am an appointed 

member of the Study Commission. I will be chairing this portion of 

that Commission. To my left is the Vice Chairman, Mr. Norman Feldman, 

who is an alcoholic beverage wholesaler. To his left is Mr. Thomas 

Farrell, who deals with the casino industry, namely Harrah's. To Mr. 

Farrell's left is Mr. Anthony Napodano, who is with Shop Rite Liquors. 

To my extreme right is Mr. William Jerlat, who is with the New Jersey 

Licensed Beverage Association; Mr. Leo Bromley, who is with the New 

Jersey Liquor Stores Associ at ion; Mr. Frank Tripucka, who is a beer 

distributor; and, Mr. John J. Garrity, who represents the Beer 

Wholesalers' Association of New Jersey. To my immediate right is the 

Director of the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control, Mr. John F. 

Vassallo. 

At this time, I will give any one of the members of the 

Committee an opportunity to make an opening statement, if they so 

desire. Mr. Director, would you care to say anything at this point? 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: I don't think so, Assemblyman Markert. I 

think there are a lot of people who want to say something, so we can go 

right into that. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you. Before we start, I wi 11 

indicate to the members present that we have received a communique from 

Mr. Donato D'Onofrio, with reference to the "C" license and its use as 

a main package store outlet. I will turn this over to our secretary, 

who will make copies and give them to everyone in their next packets. 

Along with this letter, there are photographs and, before leaving 

today, I would appreciate it if the Committee members would take the 

opportunity to at least glance at these, so in readwg the 

correspondence you will have some idea of what the gentleman is 

speaking about. I would also apprec1atc~ 1f anyuiH! lla!; pn~p;u·ed 

testimony, if we could receive a copy of that. Please give it to the 

secretary, and we will then be able to d1stribute it to the rest of the 

Committee. 

The first person to testify today 

Lefkowitz, who is representing the Garden 

Association. Mr. Lefkowitz? 

will be 

State 

Mr. Barry 

Restaurant 

B A R R Y l [ f K 0 W I T Z: Good roormng, Mr. Chairman and members 

of the Committee. We thank you, once again, for allowing us the time 

and opportunity to come before you. 

Basically, Mr. Chairman, out of deference to all the ladies 

and gentlemen in the audience, because of the press1ng 1ssue they have 

come here about in regard to trade practices relating to advertlsing, 

we have opted that we would rather provide each member of the Committee 

with a kit. Enclosed in this kit are certain materials relevant and 

pertinent to legislation on the issue about wh1ch we have come before 

you today. What we would like to do is pull back from testl fying 

today, since there are so many people here who want to be able to talk 

about other issues, and provide the Committee an opportunity to study 

the material before you. Then at the next hearing, we would like to 

have an opportunity to testify after you have looked at this material. 

In addition, we have on the way from the State of New Mexico, 

which is the last state to opt for a limited permit for beer and wine, 

the Parker Study, which is the basis for the legitimacy of why the 

State of New Mexico has altered its liquor licenses and its laws with 

regard to this issue. We feel the Parker Study would be most 

advantageous to the Committee for its purposes and its dellberation. 
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Since we do not have it with us -- the State Legislature is sending it 

to us from New Mexico --when we receive it, which we believe will be 

by the end of this week, we will then submit it to the Committee for 

its perusal, so that in the time period before its next meeting it will 

be able to study that, as well as the material in the kit. 

Therefore, we would just like to put into the record that we 

have the kits here for you for study purposes, as well as a copy of the 

legislation. At such time as the Committee meets again, when all of 

you have had an opportunity to peruse the materials, we would then like 

to testify before the Committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much, Mr. Lefkowitz, and 

thank you also for your consideration of the others who are here 

today. Is Mr. Milza here? (affirmative answer) Would you please step 

forward? 

J 0 5 E P H P. M I l Z A: Mr. Chairman and members of the 

Subcommittee: My name is Joseph Milza. I am President and owner of 

the Renault Winery. Our winery has been in existence since 1864 in New 

Jersey. At present, we are talking about an industry that has been a 

little bit forgotten about in the past. At one time, we had 

twenty-eight wineries in the State of New Jersey, all located in South 

Jersey. Today, there are seven. We, ourselves, were the leading 

domestic champagne producer in the country up unt ll the late '50's -

that is a little bit of history right now. 

At the present time, the industry finds itself in a little 

bit of a precarious position. 

diminished considerably. In 

Over the years, the market share has 

1978, New Jersey was fourth in the 

production of wine; now, in 1983, we are ninth in the production of 

wine in the United States. We employ a decent amount of people, but we 

are watching an industry just fall apart. We feel there are certain 

things that perhaps could be done, an awareness we feel we are putt i.ng 

across riqht now, but, basically, if we are expected to survive, there 

are some new positions and new strategies that might be helpful to us. 

As a matter of fact, on December 17, 1982, Governor Thomas Kean 

proclaimed it was important for the State to recognize the New Jersey 

wine wdustry, contribute to a greater public awareness of it and 

provide assistance to the industry's growth. 
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Wu have dec1dt'd at Renault lhut, rlillter Uum u 111tl tortwlde 

winery, we would perhaps better operate as a tourist operal10n in the 

manufacture of wine, and we have done that very, very well. We are 

pretty well known in our area. I don't know about here in Bergen 

County, but down where we are, we are pretty well known. The point is, 

we have between 80,000 and 100,000 people going through our facilities 

each year, tast inq New Jersey wines, from qrapc:_; qrown llf'rc ti1 N,:~w 

Jersey, and we are very proud of this. Howr)vPr, there HI'r~ ·;tx nlh,)r 

wineries. We are the largest and the oldest winery in New Jersey, but 

there are six others. I am concerned about them, but I am concerned 

about our interests, too. 

We would like you to consider certain recommendations with 

tied house statute 33:1-43, "interest in brewery, distlllery and 

retailing, prohibited." We recognize the statute was set up at one 

time to protect the public from large interests being able to control 

production and distribution, and perhaps creating monopolies, or 

something of that nature. However, we feel an amendment, which would 

allow a New Jersey winery to be able to seek, purchase or have an 

interest in a plenary retail consumption license, Class "C," to be 

conducted as a bona fide restaurant, would open vanous avenues of 

marketing opportunities to the wine industry. 

This is someth1ng that is going on in California, and 1t 1s 

supporting the wine industry there tremendously, in that they are 

putting very quaint, interesting restaurants w1thin the winenes and 

allowing people to go right to them. It is quite helpful. We put a 

beautiful restaurant in our winery; it opened five or six weeks ago. 

We are very proud of it; it is located on-site, but we are ltmited to 

what we can offer any tourists coming into the area. An amendment like 

this would allow me to purchase, perhaps, or have an interest 1n a 

plenary retail consumption license for use at the restaurant located 

on-site at the winery. It would offer a full-service facility, and an 

opportunity to expose the patrons to New Jersey products, when they 

visit the establishment. 

Basically, that is all, sir. We have this written up, and I 

hope there will be some discussion on it of some kind. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Milza, your statements today, and 

the paper which you have provided to us, of course, are very important, 

and will enable us to follow your thoughts, your testimony and your 

request. There is another subcommittee of this Commission which deals 

with licensing. To be honest with you, since we are dealing mainly 

with trade practices, the licensing aspect should be discussed, and 

should be studied by the subcommittee dealing solely with llcensing. 

So, with your permission, I would like to have the secretary prepare 

copies of your statement, and submit them to the members of the 

Licensing Subcommittee, along with some other facts Mr. Lefkowitz has 

brought to us which also deal with licensing, for their study and 

review. If you will leave us your address, I will see that the 

Chairman of the Licensing Subcommittee's name and address are referred 

to you so you may contact him. I have your name, so please just leave 

your address. 

MR. MILZA: Thank you very much, sir; thank you, gentlemen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Is there anyone on the Committee who 

would like to address any questions to Mr. Milza? 

MR. FELDMAN: Mr. Milza -- if I may, Mr. Chairman -- just for 

referring to the Licensing Subcommittee, is it your recommendation that 

the "C" license be able to sell all alcoholic beverages, including 

those that you do not produce? 

MR. MILZA: Yes, sir. In other words, as it reads right now, 

a w i.nery owner, a brewery owner, or a distributor may not have an 

interest, either directly or indirectly, 1n a license, or in a retail 

license. My interest is--

MR. FELDMAN: To have a full license? 

MR. MILZA: Hold it, let me just point this out too, the most 

important part of it. If a New Jersey winery owner I am try1ng to 

be very specific about this -- could have an interest in a "C" license, 

and if it were even restricted to the site of the winery, so that 

interests outside of the winery were not just coming into the area, 

buying small wineries and taking advantage of these practices, I would 

be open to that too. · 

MR. FELDMAN: Mr. Chairman, I have a second question. Does 

this license permit off-premise consumption, that is, a full "C" 

license? 
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MR. MILZA: Yes, a full "C" license. 

MR. FELDMAN: Would you then also want the privllege of 

selling for off-premise consumption, products other than your wines, or 

all products? 

MR. MILZA: No, sir, we are not interested in that. We are 

1nterested in it to be used only in a restaurant -- on premi :Je -

except for the fact that, of course, our wines are off premise too, our 

own wines. 

MR. FELDMAN: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Mi lza. Are there any 

further questions? 

MR. JERLAT: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Milza, I would 

just like to ask one question. Do you feel there would be an increase 

in the consumption of alcoholic beverages in that particular area? In 

other words, if you plan on operating a restaurant serving alcoholic 

beverages, a full "C" license, do you feel that would be bringing new 

people into the area, or whether that would be just spreading, let's 

say, the "piece of pie" around a little more? 

MR. MILZA: My point, and the interest. I have, IS to help the 

wine industry for what it is right now, the New Jersey wine industry. 

My point there is, that this would allow the seven wineries, and now 

the new farm wineries, to perhaps do what I have done, add a 

restaurant, expand their facility --let's face it, tourism is a very, 

very important product in this State. If we can offer more to the 

tourists, if I can offer more in my restaurant, that is, provide a 

further service, I think it will help us put our whole idea across. 

Besides that, it introduces more people to more New Jersey wines. We 

have won twenty-four separate awards for our wines, between two 

wineries in New Jersey, and I think it has been kept quiet. I think we 

would like people to understand what, we are trying to do. 

So, no, I do not think it would introduce any more people to 

consuming alcoholic beverages. Perhaps, it would interest them in a 

different way, in our particular business. 

MR. JERLAT: I just wonder, how would the consumption of 

alcoholic beverages, beer, wine or hard liquor, being served in your 

restaurant at the winery, help promote the wines of New Jersey? That 

is what I'm wondering. 
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MR. MILZA: Well, first of all, we would u~e only our wines. 

We use only our wines right now. We would again use just our w1nes, 

but it would round out the facility, in my opinion. I think we can 

conduct ourselves as a rounded restaurant more that way, than we can in 

our present manner. 

MR. JERLAT: All right, thank you. 

MR. MILZA: Thank you, sir. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, Mr. Vassallo. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Mr. Milza, right now you serve wine in 

your restaurant, because you have, as a Class "A" licensee, a plenary 

winery, the privilege of serving for on-premises consumption alcoholic 

beverages manufactured on the premises. 

question 

wineries? 

MR. MILZA: That's right, sir. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: How would-- to follow up on Mr. Jerlat's 

consuming other alcoholic beverages assist the New Jersey 

MR. MILZA: Well, I certainly think it would make it more 

available for people to have a complete rounded restaurant there. I 

don't know that I'm getting everyone I should get with just what I am 

offering right now at the restaurant, nor are any of the other six 

wineries. I know they are very much interested in the success I have 

had so far with our restaurant, and are interested in the other 

wineries doing nbout the same thing. I believe we are hampered by -

perhaps there are other restaurants in the area -- not offering a 

rounded product. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Is this really helping the winery, or is 

it helping you to run a successful restaurant? 

MR. MILZA: There is no quest ion about it; it 1s helping me 

to run a successful restaurant, which is helping our winery, and which, 

I think, 1s cant inuing to employ and help the industry. I would 

encourage the rest of my colleagues in the wine 1ndustry to continue. 

I lh1nk it's great; I think it's good for them, and 1t opens new 

horizons for them. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: How much grape from New Jersey do you use, 

percentagewise? 
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MR. MILZA: New Jersey grapes? Our winery us•~s 95~.; New 

Jersey grapes. In my tenure there, we have only used 95% for the past 

two years. We used 100% prior to that. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: What is your annual production in 

gallons? 

MR. MILZA: In gallons -- sales, or production out of a 

field? 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Your production of wine. 

MR. MILZA: We will take out of the fields anywhere frotn 

88,000 to 221,000 gallons of grapes, to produce wines thal wtll sell 111 

our winery of approximately just over 110,000 to 115,000 gallons. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: What do you do with the rest of it? 

MR. MILZA: We put it in storage. We are presently selling 

what we picked in 1979, 1980 or 1981. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Do you have any problem selling your 

entire production of wine? 

MR. MILZA: Oh, no, no. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Whether on your premises, or through 

wholesaling it to retailers? 

available? 

MR. MILZA: With the present production, no. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Do you intend to increase production? 
MR. MILZA: Yes. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Are there more New Jersey grapes 

MR. MILZA: There are more grapes available, yes, there are. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: How much more? 

MR. MILZA: Not a. whole lot in New Jersey, really. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: So, you would have to bring grapes in to 

increase production? 

MR. MILZA: We would have to bring grapes in from other 

states, or grow them ourselves. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: If you were to be given such a privilege 

as this, an exception to the tied house prohibitions, and be allowed to 

also operate a plenary consumption license in addition to the 

consumption privileges you have on your Class "A" license, I don't see 

how we could restrict it to wineries. We would also have to give it to 
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New Jersey breweries, New Jersey blenders and rectifiers, and any other 
Class "A" licensees. 

MR. MILZA: Well, that is one of the reasons why I said the 

wine industry has been falling behind. We are looking for some help 

somewhere along the line. There is another winery ready to go out of 

business of the seven existing now. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Which one is that? 

MR. MILZA: I don't think it would be a good idea to say, but 

it's Jake. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: I think everyone knows Jake, and if 

anyone visits the premises there, he just has a very small operation, 

and has done nothing to increase it. 

MR. MILZA: I know, but it might be that something like this 

would offer him the opportunity of turning it over, perhaps, to someone 

who could do something with it. Jake is an old man right now, and he 

is not interested in developing his winery. Maybe some of the other 

winery owners are not interested either. I do know that there are some 

like myself who are very interested in the industry, and who are 

pressing the industry to do more -- grow more grapes, make more wine 

and do their New Jersey thing, and that is what I am concerned about. 

I think this would open a new avenue, but perhaps too much further. 
This would even allow the winery license holder to perhaps get involved 

in other licenses, restaurant licenses, where New Jersey wines can best 

be presented to the public. I see nothing wrong with Lhat; I don't 

know, unless there is something wrong I don't see. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: We won't go into the legal problems here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I believe Mr. Bromley has a question. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Milza, there will be some testimony later 

on about some of the troubles and difficulties suffered by people who 

hold current consumption and distribution licenses. Therefore, I want 

to ask if the additional business for your restaurant, which may 

benefit your restaurant, will not come from existing consumption 

licensees who may be in trouble at this time? 

MR. MILZA: I doubt that very, very much. 

bustnesses all over the State, and I don't know that-

MR. BROMLEY: Not near your restaurant. 
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MR. MILZA: Well, there are wineries all over South Jersey. 

If, in essence, the Winery Association agreed, like I do, that this was 

a sensible marketing tool and to get into it, I would venture to say, 

"Yes, there are restaurants in those areas, and in our Amencan way of 

operating a business, maybe there would be compelttion." I don't know 

that competition is so bad. 

MR. BROMLEY: Well, I have to questio11 you further then, 

stnce you raised the issue of competition, bAcause you would be buying 

it wholesale, or using it wholesale, and you would be competing with 

retailers. 

MR. MILZA: I still can't sell it for any less than they can 

sell it for. 

MR. BROMLEY: There is no requirement on price in a 

restaurant as to what you charge. What I'm saytng, since you raised 

the question of fairness, is that you offer your product to us for us 

to exhibit in our stores at our costs, and then you sell it retail at a 

basic winery cost, having us completely at a competitive disadvantage. 

MR. MILZA: No, no, I'm sorry. Unless I misunderstand-

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If I may interject at this tlme, Mr. 

Milza and Mr. Bromley, I understand the line of questioning, but it is 

getting beyond the point, I think truthfully, of what this Committee 

should be sitting on. Although I said that I would extend leniency, I 

think we have really gotten to a point where I would like to see if we 

could continue this type of questioning and discussion under the 

Licensing Subcommittee, where we would be able to address more 

specifically those areas you are addressing. So, Mr. Milza, I thank 

you for being with us this morning, and I wi 11 see to it that the 

Subcommittee with reference to licensing gets a copy of your report. 

You will receive their address in the mail. Thank you very much. 

At this time, I want to say we are going to try to keep the 

testimony down to within ten or fifteen minutes per witness, including 

questioning, so we will have an opportunity to allow everyone to 

speak. We, of course, can always come around for the second time, 1 f 

necessary. If there are any newcomers who have come in, if you would 

like to testify before this Committee, please give us your name and we 

will add it to the bottom of the list. 
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The next witness will be a Mr. Joseph Mannaccio. Would you 

like to step forward, please? You're from Loch Arbour Liquors? 

(affirmative response) Would you also give us your address, please? 

J 0 S E P H M A R I N A C C I 0: I am Joseph Marinaccio, from 541 

Main Street, Loch Arbour. What I would like to say is that I have been 

in the retail package business for eight years. My business was very 

healthy for six and a half years. I had healthy growth and ·good 

progress, until eighteen months ago. A Buy Rite was formed less than 

two blocks from my store, and in just the past twelve months I have 

suffered a $7,500 loss in gross profits. There is a steady 

deterioration that I can't seem to stop. The intensity of the 

competition is just too strong for me to overcome. I have exhausted 

all of the possible avenues I can think of to try to stop the 

deterioration, and nothing seems to be working. I am left in a 

position now where I have no other alternatives except to consider 

selling my business. 

I don't know what else to say, except that I feel the present 

system we are work1ng under is very unfair to the smaller retailers. I 

do not have the capital, nor the space, to compete with the larger 

stores. I don't know what to do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Maybe I can ask a few questions, and we 

can bring out a little bit more about the problems you've had. In your 

eyes, what do you feel has been the most detrimental thing about the 

fact that this, you say, Buy Rite store has opened? What has Buy Rite 

done, or what do you feel they are doing that is putting you in the 

position of losing business to the degree you have? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, I feel the advertising is the most 

devastating part. For me to advertise competitively with them is just 

out of my financial capacity. So, the advertising is the most 

devestatinq part. Another thing is their buying power. I don't have 

the space lo store, nor the capital to buy as much 1nventory as 1s 

needed to compete with them effectively. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Do you feel that if you were to have 

the same type of buying power they have, regardless of space needed, or 

whatever, you would then be put in a fairer position of competition? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Would you please repeat that? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If you had more equal buying power, 

however it may come about -- if you had a more equal buying power, 

would that put you in a better position financially to cope wilh that 

type of competition? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: With reference to -- you mentioned 

advertising exactly what in reference to advertising do you feel is 

detrimental to your particular type of operation? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Their price cutting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Their price cutting? Are you talking 

about price cutting within their advertising, or is it the quant d y of 

advertising? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, I would say both, a little of both. 

It's a lot of advertising we're talking about; it's very powerful, and 

it's very competitive. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Feldman, do you have any questions 

at this time? 

MR. FELDMAN: No, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Napodano? 

MR. NAPODANO: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Marinaccio, are you a 

member of the cooperative buying group? 
MR. MARINACCIO: No. 

MR. NAPODANO: Have you at any time been a member of a 

cooperative buying group? 

MR. MARINACCIO: No. 

MR. NAPODANO: Have you ever looked into joining a 

cooperative buying group? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. NAPODANO: What cooperative group? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Price King, and Spirits Unlimited. 

MR. NAPODANO: Can you tell us, did you decide not to join a 

group? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, the final decision was mine, but I was 

more or less advised not to, based on the fact that my current volume 

of sales was very low, and my store size is very small. I was led to 

believe that my store is not really geared for their type of 
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ope rat ions, and that it would be very difficult for me to use their 

type of operations. This is the impression I got. 

MR. NAPODANO: So, when you say the decision was not yours, 
are you saying--

MR. MARINACCIO: (interrupting) The decision was mine; the 

final decision was mine, but I was discouraged in joining them for the 

reasons I mentioned. 

MR. NAPODANO: By the cooperative groups themselves -- is 

that what you're saying? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. NAPODANO: Can you tell me the selling square footage of 

your store, the selling space? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Approximately 1,400 square feet. 

MR. NAPODANO: And, can you approximate for me the selling 

square footage of the Buy Rite store? 

MR. MARINACCIO: I don't know; I don't go in those stores. 

MR. NAPODANO: Is it considerably larger, considerably 

smaller, can you guesstimate it for me? Is it much bigger? 

months? 

MR. MARINACCIO: I would guess he is slightly bigger. 

MR. NAPODANO: Just slightly bigger? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes, he doesn't have that big a store. 

MR. NAPODANO: How long has that Buy Rite been open, eighteen 

MR. MARINACCIO: Eighteen months, yes. 

MR. NAPODANO: And, in the course of the last eighteen 

months, did I understand you to say your sales volume has dropped 

$7,500? 

MR. MARINACCIO: My gross profit. 

MR. NAPODAND: What effect has that had on your sales volume? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, my sales are around the same; my gross 

s~les figures aren't that off, but that is due to a lot of lower profit 

margin items I've been running to try to compete. Gross profit figures 

~re no figures to go by -- excuse me, I mean gross sales figures are no 

figures to base anything on. 

MR. NAPODANO: Well, when you say your gross profit margin 

dropped by $7, 500, it doesn't really mean anything to me, unless we 
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relate it to what your gross margin profit was prior thereto and what 

it is now with respect to that $7, 500. When we are talking about 

sales, and what effect the Buy Rite has had on your sales, you're 

telling me that your sales are about level prior to the Buy Rite 

opening and today. So, you're doing the same sales, so what you have 

obviously done to compete with the Buy Rite, is to reduce your qross 

margin. 

MR. MARINACCIO: That is correct. 

MR. NAPODANO: Okay, but the $7,500 reduct ion doesn't mean 

anything with respect to what it was and what it is now. 

understand what I'm saying? 

Do you 

MR. MARINACCIO: No. 

MR. NAPODANO: It is very possible that you may have been in 

a locality where you had no competition, and, therefore, were able 

perhaps to enjoy a very high profit margin. I do not know if that is 

the case. 

MR. MARINACCIO: No. 

MR. NAPODANO: That's why I'm asking you. 

MR. MARINACCIO: No, I don't think that is the case. 

MR. NAPODANO: Who were your competitors before the Buy Rite 

moved in? 

MR. MARINACCIO: There were two other small stores within a 

three-block range. 

MR. NAPODANO: Are they still in business? 

MR. MARINACCIO: One of them is the Buy Rite now. 

MR. NAPODANO: Oh, I see. The present owner of the Buy Rite 

store was an independent before he joined the Buy Rite-- it's the same 
owner though? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. NAPODANO: And, both of these other stores were within --

did you say a three-block area? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. NAPODANO: I have no further questions; thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: We have been privileged to have join us 

another member of the Commission. I will introduce him now, and also 

give him an opportunity to address us. This is Mr. John McCaffrey, who 
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is representing the New Jersey Conference of Mayors, and Anheuser 
Rusch. Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAFFREY: Joe, hasn't the Buy Rite outfit changed hands 

over the last eighteen months? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. McCAFFREY: What do you suppose was the reason for that? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Excuse me? 

MR. McCAFFREY: What was the reason for that changeover -

the reason it changed hands, the reason the ownership of that title 

changed hands? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, I do not know for sure; I can only 

guess about how that happened. My guess would be that the past owner 

wanted to sell, and he used the Buy Rite image to help sell his store. 

That is in my estimation; I don't know for sure. 

MR. McCAFFREY: Then it is not true that the changeover was 

due to the fact that he was not making a profit -- a substantial enough 

profit in spite of the cut prices? 

MR. MARINACCIO: In his store? 

MR. McCAFFREY: That's right, in his store. 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, that I don't know. 

MR. JERLAT: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, Mr. Jerlat. 

MR. JERLAT: Joe -- do you mind if I call you Joe? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Not at all. 

MR. JERLAT: Can you tell me how many licenses there are in 

your municipality at the present time, "C's" and "D's?" 
MR. MARINACCIO: In my municipality there is one "C" license 

and one "D" license. 

MR. JERLAT: There is only one "C" license in the township? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. JERLAT: And, one '~" license? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. JERLAT: What is the population of the town, do you know? 

MR. MARINACCIO: About 350 people. 

MR. JERLAT: Three hundred and fifty? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. JERLAT: Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Is there anyone else? Mr. Bromley? 

MR. BROMLEY: Joe -- I'd like to call you Joe, and I'm Leo 

Joe, about the advertising which you said hurt you, was it the cost of 

the advertising, was it your inability to pay for advertising, or was 

it the fact of advertising a product at little or no markup, which 

compelled you to sell at that level? In other words, did the Buy Rile 

ad make your market? Did your customers come in and tell you they 

could get the product up the street at a certam pnce and that you 

would have to match it? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. BROMLEY: Is that what took place? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes, and it is still taklng place. 

MR. BROMLEY: If you offered your store for sale, lS it 

possible that you may not sell it? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. BROMLEY: Would that result in less service to the people 

in your municipality, since you say there are only two licenses there? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. My municipality has only one 

distribution license, because of the low population. So, if my license 

was eliminated, they would be forced to go to the next town to buy 

their package goods. 
MR. BROMLEY: Then, it would be your statement that if this 

continues and you are not able to continue in business, that you will 

either offer your store for sale, or be forced to close it down? 

MR. MARINACCIO: That's right. 

MR. BROMLEY: Thank you. 

MR. GARRITY: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, Mr. Garrity. 

MR. GARRITY: Mr. Marinaccio, have you considered trying to 

join the Buy Rite cooperative, or have you made any approaches in that 

direction? 

MR. MARINACCIO: The Buy Rite? 

MR. GARRITY: Yes. 

MR. MARINACCIO: No. 

MR. GARRITY: Why not? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, I feel we are a little too close in 

distance to have two of the same franchises. 
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MR. GARRITY: Wouldn't it put you on an equal level with your 

former competitor? I understand you were probably on an equal level 

with your competitors prior to Buy Rite coming in. 

MR. MARINACCIO: That is correct. 

MR. GARRITY: Couldn't you equalize that by maybe approaching 

Buy Rite and trying to join them? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, it would equalize it, yes, but I don't 

see why they would do it when we are only two blocks apart. 

MR. GARRITY: I am trying to elicit from you a response about 

whether they would do it or not. 

MR. MARINACCIO: I don't know. 

MR. GARRITY: You were discouraged in a way by the other 

cooperatives from joining? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. GARRITY: Have you any knowledge of whether cooperatives 

sort of space out their members? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 

MR. GARRITY: You feel they do? In other words, they 

wouldn't want another cooperative near you, or another Buy Rite near 

you, and you probably felt that having two together wouldn't be the 

best situation either? 

MR. MARINACCIO: To my knowledge, they try to keep a radius 

between their stores. 

MR. GARRITY: All right, thank you. 

MR. NAPODANO: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, Mr. Napodano. 

MR. NAPODANO: I have one more question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, certainly. 

MR. NAPODANO: I guess I'll continue the practice of calling 

you Joe, if it is all right. 

MR. MARINACCIO: Sure. 

MR. NAPODANO: Are you familiar with whether or not Buy Rite 

1s a buying cooperative, or an advertising cooperative --do you know? 

MR. MARINACCIO: As far as I know, it 1s just an advertising 

cooperative. 

MR. NAPODANO: It's just an advertising cooperative? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes. 
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MR. NAPODANO: So, when you were asked before whether or not 

your buying power could equalize that of Buy Rite, I presume that at 

the present time that Buy Rite store and you both have the same buying 

power, do you not? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Well, possibly. 

MR. NAPODANO: Thank you; I have no further questions. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes, Mr. Bromley. 

MR. BROMLEY: May I ask the witness another question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Yes. 

MR. BROMLEY: His previous testimony indicated his buying 

power was affected by his space and his capital, and that he had 

neither to equal the Buy Rite. If that is so, then even if you joined 

Buy Rite or any other organization, you would not have the space or 

capital to compete with that store. Is that not so? 

got, yes. 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes, that is true. 

MR. BROMLEY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I believe that is the indication we 

MR. JERLAT: May I ask for a point of information? Possibly 

no one on this Committee may have it, but I think it would be a good 

idea if we got it. Is there a restriction, as far as an organization 

such as Buy Rite -- is there any type of restrict ion regarding the 

radius of miles, or radius of area, that one store must be located from 

another? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: That's a good question, Mr. Jerlat. 

Maybe we can search out the answer on that. 

MR. JERLAT: I think it would be a good idea if we got that 

information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Director, do you by chance know whether 

or not there is a restriction under Buy Rite whether they would 

restrict stores within a certain radius? 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: I think in practice they do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: This, of course, would be up to the 

company itself really. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: I guess it would. 

1\ •;•~t-MHI YM/\N MARKFH T: Thank yn11 v•' t'V rnr wl1, .lor·. 

18 



MR. FELDMAN: May I ask one question, Mr. Chairman? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Feldman. 

MR. FELDMAN: I passed before, but with reference to Mr. 

Bromley's question about servicing the community, do you make any 

deliveries to local consumers who are customers? 

MR. MARINACCIO: Yes, I do. 

MR. FELDMAN: So, therefore, if you went out of business, 

there would be no local delivery, no local service of that sort? 

Knight. 

MR. MARINACCIO: Not in our town, no. 

MR. FELDMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much. 

MR. MARINACCIO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: The next witness will be Mr. Richard 

MR. KNIGHT: Yes. Mr. Chairman, I would like to defer to Mr. 

Fred Guarnieri. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: All right, fine. 

f R E 0 G U A R N I E R I: Rather than have the retailers testify 

piecemeal, I would like to make a statement for the New Jersey Liquor 

Stores' Association. 

Assemblyman Markert, fellow licensees, ladies and gentlemen: 

My name is Fred Guarnieri. I am the Executive Vice President of the 

New Jersey Liquor Stores' Association, and a package store owner. I am 

here today representing our Association. 

Gentlemen, first I would like to make an observation which is 

clear to all licensees, but not apparent to the Legislature. We are 

confused by the numerous conflicting, contradictory, and often 

schizophrenic actions of our regulators and the Legislature in the last 

few years. 

We are regulated by legislative acts, specifically Title 33, 

which calls upon the Director of the ABC to supervise the sales of 

a 1 coho l ic beverages in such a manner as to promote temperance. The 

Supreme Court has confirmed his powers to maintain a temperate and 

order 1 y market. 

The marketplace now demonstrates the failure of past 

regulators to comply with the legislative intent of Title 33 to promote 

a temperate and orderly market. 
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Our elected officials, even back then, saw the need to 

regulate the sale, the distribution, the promotion, the consumption, 

and the advertisement of alcoholic beverages. They saw the dangers 

inherent with alcoholic beverages. They also realized that temperate 

use was not harmful to New Jersey's citizens. Today, our Assembly and 

Senate have addressed the dangers of alcohol abuse with many 

legislative acts, clearly supporting the original legislative intent of 

a temperate, orderly market, namely, the increased drinking age, the 

proposed stiffer penalties for drunk driving and the proposed increase 

in alcoholic beverage taxes to fund alcoholic rehab Ll it at i.on centers. 

The public has voiced its concerns, namely, the actions of MADD 

(Mothers Against Drunk Drivers), the P.T.A.'s, the police chiefs, the 

A.A., and many others, but yet our regulators, past and present, have 

failed to heed these many voices for moderation. 

We intend to show the marketplace today, under current 

regulations, has violated tlie original legislative intent. It has 

fostered a destabilized market, it has promoted the inducement to 

greater consumption by predatory prices, it has allowed predatory 

advertising, it has allowed the destruction of many small retailers, 

and it is continuing to allow the obvious contradiction that this 

· ntemperate marketplace has produced. 

We feel the following subjects should be addressed by this 

Subcommittee, and should be presented to the Commission. First, we 

would like to see the definition of cost reflect the true cost of 

selling a product as a means of stabilizing the marketplace and 

reducing the opportunity for predatory pricing. It seems 

discriminatory that the regulations prohibit predatory pricing from the 

distributors and the manufacturers, but fails to address this in the 

retail segment of the trade. We believe that the true cost at which 

this regulated, controlled substance should be sold is the cost of the 

product, plus the fixed costs of doing business. Our fellow retailers 

feel this alone would go a long way to reestablishing the original 

legislative intent. 

Second, we would l ike to address the practice of price 

advertising, especially predatory pr_jce advertising. Price advertising 

is for the inducement to the public to purchase alcoholic beverages. 
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This inducement can only lead to increased consumption. Price 
lldVPJ'ti:linq hnn only honefihtc1 thcHJI" r"'t·nilerR Pnqnqr-rl 111 c-utthrnRI 

pricing. It has been a windfall to the newspapers, and has accelerated 

the destabilization of the marketplace. It has violated every intent 

of the legislative mandate, past and present. How can you glorify the 

promotion of alcoholic beverages, and decry the inherent dangers at the 

same time? 

These two points are keys to the reestablishment of a 

temperate, orderly market, and to the resolution of most of our current 

retail problems. We would bring to your attention some of the other 

trade practices detrimental to the retail trade: 

1. Alcoholic beverages available at Federal bases; 

2. Credit regulation as discriminatory to the retail trade; 

3. The wholesalers' two-week closing annually as harmful to 

all licensees, the licensees relying on the seasonal business, the 

casino licensees who lack sufficient licensed space to stock enough 

products to serve the public needs, and the inner city licensees, who 

oftentimes cannot get insurance for additional products, even if they 

had the additional licensed space; 

4. The limitation of Dram Shop liability because of the 

unaffordable cost; and, 

5. False identification. We support increased penalties to 

those perpetrators inducing illegal sales to the underaged public. 

We would like to go on record supporting the Co-op 

regulations as a beneficial tool to the retail trade. We would support 

the concept of multiple deliveries for Co-op purchases. 

We would like to voice our total opposition to any extens1on 

of the 1 icensing privilege. We are pleased to point out that the 

current licensing laws have helped to maintain strict control of 

alcoholic beverage distribution. We feel it is important to note that 

our businesses are dependent on our s t rict compliance with ABC laws and 

regulations . The extension of licenses would jeopardize this strict 

control, as the Director has testified. 

I have additional retailers to testify to the economic 

hardships -- one of whom you heard recently -- the market has brought 

about, and other retailers to elaborate on the points raised here. 
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We ask the Subcommittee to recommend to the Commission the 

appropriate steps necessary to solve these apparent contradict10ns of 

legislative intent and regulatory practices. 

I thank you very much for your consideration, and I would be 

happy to answer any questions you may have. I would like to add just 

one other comment. When I got home last night, I picked up my weekly 

Newsweek, and on the cover it said, "Drugs on Job." In read i.ng the 

article, it says, "Alcohol is still the most abused drug, and its 

impact on industry cannot be minimized." They are referring to the 

harm of drugs on the job. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Guarnieri. I think your 

paper is quite complete. I have no questions with reference to the 

statements you made here. No doubt those who come after you and report 

the types of hardships they are involved in in their own businesses 

may, at that time, give me some questions. However, please let me 

offer the rest of the Committee the opportunity to address you on 

anything that has been presented to us. Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAffREY: fred, on Page 3, Item 1, you say, "One of the 

trade practices detrimental to the retail trade is alcoholic beverages 

available at federal bases." Now, how wide a brush are you using with 

respect to those terms? Are you including the foreign spots that are 
not available to outsiders? Is that your gripe here? 

MR. GUARN No, we are referring to the Federal bases, such as 

the air bases, the naval stations, fort Dix particularly in the 

southern region, where alcoholic beverages have no State excise tax and 

have no Federal excise tax, and the consumer who has retired from the 

service has access to this alcohol, which is oftentimes sold at a much 
lower price than even what the deregulated market makes available. 

MR. McCAFFREY: But, are you complaining about the on-premise 

consumption at these bases? 

MR. GUARNIERI: No, we are not complaining about the 

on-premise consumption; it is strictly the off -premise consumption we 

are concerned with. 

MR. McCAFFREY: All right, thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If there are no other questions, I 

thank you very much. 

MR. NAPODANO: I have one question, Mr. Cha1rman, I'm sorry. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Go right ahead. 

MR. GUARNIERI: I didn't think you'd let me go, Tony. 

MR. NAPODANO: I certainly will let you go. (laughter) I 

read your paper as you were speaking. There is one statement you have 

in here that I ~m wondering if you have any backup study to 

substantiate your position that price advertising is an inducement that 

leads to increased consumption. Do you have any study at all that 

would substantiate that, other than mere speculation? 

MR. GUARNIER: I have no comparable data on it. The 

distilleries have oftentimes shown that the sale of a larger size will 

lend the consumer to a quicker consumption of that product, be it the 

availability of it, as opposed to a seven-fifty and, as a retailer, I 

can only say from experience that we have seen it within the store, 

both on distilled spirits and wines, that the product that is purchased 

in a fifth, the consumer will come back and buy a fifth at his regular 

time, but the consumer who buys a liter will consume it in the same 

period. It is only the availability of the product in the home that 

has, I think, a tendency to increase the consumption. If it is not 

there, then they do not have it. It's like the person who comes in and 

gets a six-pack. If he buys two six-packs, he' 11 be back the next 

night for two six-packs. If he buys one six-pack and consumes the one 

six-pack, he will stay home and will not go out. This is pretty much a 

feel, as a retailer for seventeen years, that I'm reporting on. I have 

no data to back up that statement. 

MR. NAPODANO: Okay. I do not believe you're saying 

unless you are -- that there is a correlation between the size of the 

product and price advertising. Are you saying that, because I asked 

you the question, and you went on to explain, which I do not question, 

that the size of a product may increase consumption within a shorter 

period of time? But, that does not relate itself necessarily to price 

advertising, does it? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Not necessarily, but when the consumer can 

buy the same product he was paying $25.00 for the week before for 

$16.98 as a "lost liter," we are finding that the consumer is buying as 

much as he can buy at that price, because he doesn't know when it is 

going to come back down to that price. 
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MR. NAPODANO: All right. The reason I asked you the 

question was not necessarily to put you on the spot, but I have heard 

among my colleagues as we discuss, this same theory, yet no one has 

produced any learned study, or detailed study I am aware of, that 

correlates advertising to consumption. 

The second question I would like to ask you is just for 

informational purposes. Concerning your request that cost be 

redefined, do you intend there that the cost for each of the 12,000 

licensees would therefore be different? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Obviously, that would present a monumental 

task to regulators. I would think the Commission would have to make a 

recommendation as to what they found to be the average, and I feel they 

have the tools available to them to find out this information. 

They have access, I believe through the Commerce Department, to the 

financial statements filed by every licensee in the State. They could 

ascertain what their fixed costs of doing business were. 

MR. NAPODANO: One of the problems we addressed yesterday at 

the Enforcement Subcommittee Meeting was the limitation that the 

Director now has in manpower, and indeed the limitation that the 

Enforcement Bureau now has in manpower because of budget cuts. What 

you are suggesting, I believe, would result in a different cost for 
every licensee in the State. There would be no uniform way of 

enforcing it, other than for the Director, or the State Police, to 

require each licensee to be visited and their fixed costs to be audited 

and analyzed to come up with a dollar, which would change, perhaps, the 

following week. 

MR. GUARNIERI: I would not say in the following week; it 

could possibly change in the following year. Your fixed cost -- your 

license is going to cost you the same, your property taxes would cost 

you the same, your light and power is going to cost you the same, 

except maybe it will go up every year--

MR. NAPODANO: Your utilities would not necessarily be a 

fixed cost, would they? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Why not? 

MR. NAPODANO: All right, but then I'm not quite sure--

MR. GUARNIERI: (interrupting) I mean, you have to pay the 

utility bill to operate that liquor store. 
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MR. NAPODANO: All right, but a fixed cost in my terminology 

means something different, obviously, from the way you're defining 

fixed cost. But, those costs would change. If you put in your utility 

bill, and your utility bill could possibly change from month to month, 

that would obviously change your cost from month to month, would it 

not? 

MR. GUARNIERI: 

wouldn't think so. 

If you rounded it out to an average, I 

MR. NAPODANO: Thank you • 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: This will be the last question at this 

point in time -- we will extend it to two more questions, so we can 

stay within a fifteen-minute time frame. Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: Mine is not a question, but simply an answer to 

Mr. Napodano's question about recent studies in consumption patterns. 

The Wine Institute recently published a study in which they said the 

growth in per capita consumption parallels the growth in per capita 

income. That is the study they have come up with on a national basis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you for that, Mr. Feldman. Mr. 

Garrity? 

MR. GARRITY: Mr. Guarnieri, one of the points you brought 

out calling to the attention of this Committee a practice which is 

detrimental to the retail trade, is Number 2, "Credit regulation as 

discriminatory to the retail trade." Would you please amplify on that 

a bit? Please tell me how you feel it is discriminatory. 

MR. GUARNIERI: The other licensees in the State, the 

distilleries, the wineries, the breweries, and the beer wholesalers 

have no State regulation mandating the payment of their bills, and yet 

the licensees, the retail "C" and "0" licenses, are mandated by 

regulation to pay our bills in thirty days. If not, we are noticed to 

every other wholesaler and beer distributor that we are in violation. 

If we end up in an argument with the supplier and we feel unjustly put 

upon, and we want to use an economic tool, we have that economic tool 

taken away from us. I feel the distilleries, the distributors and the 

breweries do not have this mandated State regulation. Why, if we are 

going to have a credit regulation, don't we have it for all licensees? 
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MR. GARRITY: Are you aware that the Federal Alcohol Act on 

which repeal was based sets a requirement that thirty days is the usual 

and customary period for the extension of credit from wholesaler to 

retailer, or from any supplier to a retailer of alcoholic beveraqe~;? 

MR. GUARNIERI: I am aware of that provision, but this is not 

a State regulation. Again, there is no State regulation saying that 

all of your suppliers at the distillery or brewery level must be 

notified if you haven't paid a bill to one of your suppliers. 

MR. GARRITY: Do you know of any state in these United States 

which extends more than thirty days' credit on alcoholic beverages to 

retailers? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Off the top of my head, I don't, but I have 

heard forty-five days. I do not know the states, so I am really at a 

loss. 

MR. GARRITY: When you receive deliveries of alcoholic 

beverages, what frequency do you receive them on? 

MR. GUARNIERI: On an average of once a week •• 

MR. GARRITY: About once a week? What part of your inventory 

of those beverages would deplete in that week would you say? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Forty to fifty percent. 

MR. GARRITY: Forty percent to fifty percent? In other 
words, if you sell a hundred cases of "X" brand of beer, you have fifty 

left on your floor by the time you receive the next delivery. 

MR. GUARNIERI: Mr. Garrity, I have no argument with that 

The only thing I am decrying is the discriminatory regulation that 

mandates that I pay my bills in thirty days, and it doesn't do it to 

any other licensee outside the retail and tavern industries. 

MR. GARRITY: Is there any product that you receive twice a 

week -- where there are deliveries twice a week? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Not usually. 

MR. GARRITY: Not usually? 

MR. GUARNIERI: No. 

MR. GARRITY: Then, you average about four deliveries a 

month, if we round it out. If you are averaging four deliveries a 

month, I would assume that a large part of that would deplete every 

week? 

26 



• 

MR. GUARNIERI: It depends. If I happen to be buying 

Rudweiser on a deal and I get 11S cases, that could hold me for two or 

three weeks. 

MR. GARRITY: Mr. Guarnieri, do you extend credit to your 

customers? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Yes, I do. 

MR. GARRITY: You do. What percentage of your sales is sold 

on credit? 

MR. GUARNIERI: Approximately 18% of my volume is done on 

credit. 

MR. GARRITY: Do you feel that if you deplete your inventory 

of a product four times during the month that thirty days credit is 

unreasonable? 

MR. GUARNIERI: I have no difficulty with the thirty days' 

credit. My only difficulty is the manner of enforcement of that 

credit. 

MR. GARRITY: There doesn't seem to be any choice when the 

Federal Alcohol Act mandates that to prevent the tied house situations 

that existed prior to repeal. In order that others cannot gain 

control over you and your business, that thirty-day law was put into 

effect to prevent tied houses, to prevent you from getting into the 

clutches of a brewery, a distillery or a winery because you owe them so 

much money they could dictate to you, from that point on, what you do 

and how you run your business, or maybe even threaten to take it over, 

or in some way put you out of business. That was put there for your 

protection. 

MR. GUARNIERI: I agree with the major premise that tied 

houses are a very detrimental position, but the difficulty I had was 

when I had a supplier who noticed me in twenty-nine days, instead of 

the thirty days. He then proceeded to keep me on the default list for 

a period of three weeks, because he couldn't get it out of the computer 

in time. Of course, I had no problem with the other suppliers, because 

they knew I was a good credit risk. But, the difficulty is, this is 

economic blackmail that has been used by suppliers constantly within 

the industry. If it is to be enforced, it should be enforced to all 
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licensees. Why should you discriminate against the retailer? If I 

don't pay Budweiser, why should Miller say I can't have any Miller? 

Budweiser should say, "fine, you didn't pay me so you only get it for 

cash." I can solve my problem with them. But, why should I sit there 

and have the rest of my suppliers, whom I have good credit with, tell 

me I can't buy from them? 

MR. GARRITY: Well, it becomes a matter of unfair competition 

then. If Budweiser cannot extend credit to you beyond thirty days, and 

they have to put you on a C. 0. D. basis, and you decide you are not 

going to pay, or are not going to buy his product because you are on a 

C.O.D. basis, they are in an unfair competitive position with their 

competitors because they can extend you credit. That would be the 

basis of it. (laughter) 

MR. GUARNIERI: I am in an unfair competitive position right 

now. I have customers who have approximately 18% of my sales. I have 

no regulation which provides me with the same type of relief. If they 

as customers do not pay me, I am in the same cash bind. I now have to 

come up with a solution because my accounts receivable haven't been 

paid, and I do not have the State collecting my bills. If that is the 

case, then I can go to every other liquor store and say, "You can't 

sell to so and so, because he didn't pay me within thirty days." But, 

the State is not granting me that. 

MR. GARRITY: If you did not have a credit law in the State 

of New Jersey, as many other states have, controlled credit, what do 

you think the alternative 

wholesaler are concerned? 

with a wholesaler. 

MR. GUARNIERI: 

would 

Let's 

What 

I think 

be as far as your dealings with a 

say, the whole industry's deal1ngs 

would be the alternatives? 

the marketplace should find its own 

level. I think suppliers would extend credit to their credit-worthy 

customers, and would limit credit to the people they felt were not 

credit worthy. 

MR. GARRITY: Do you think they would have a discriminatory 

situation then too? 

MR. GUARNIERI: They shouldn't have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Garrity, thank you very much. I 

believe we have some other questions. Mr. Bromley, do you have 

something? 
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MH. 1\IUIMLI Y: Thla in n follow-up to 11 pr•!VIUIW qt~~mt.i•JII 

at~ked uf Mr. Gucu·nierl by Mr. Napodano, which lfl4Ulred about studlHB as 

to whether consumption might have been increased. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Oh, yes. May we get into that after we 

have finished with the current witness? 

MR. BROMLEY: I would just like to submit to the 

Subcommittee, yesterday's advertisements, which our aide will 

duplicate. We would then rest on letting the Conmittee make up their 

own minds as to whether these advertisements would tend to stimulate 
consumption. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Fine, we will be glad to take those and 

put them into the record. Is there anyone else who has a question? 

MR. FELDMAN: May I make just one observation in answer to a 

question that was asked before, where Mr. Guarnieri didn't have the 

information to answer? There are presently thirty-five states that 

have a maximum of thirty days' credit. When I say maximum, seven are 

from cash, and it goes up to thirty-five. Now, that is an unusually 

high number, because you must remember that seventeen states are 

monopolies. There are only thirty-three open states in the country, 

but thirty-five have recognized the dangers of tied house, and have on 

their books today, not regulations, but actually -- most of them 

laws limiting the credit available to retailers. 

MR. GUARNIERI: I have no objection to the credit regulation; 

my objection is to the cross-notification rules that the State of New 

Jersey enforces, which say that if you do not pay your bills in thirty 

days, you must be noticed to every other wholesaler in the State, and 

you cannot receive credit from them. I believe your credit regulations 

say strictly, "Credit can only be extended to thirty days." I have no 

objection to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Guarnieri. At this 

time, I would like to recognize the Deputy Director of the Division of 

Alcoholic Beverage Control, Mr. Robert Pinard, who is sitting in the 

back of the room. Bob, we appreciate having you here with us today. 

Thank you for coming. The next witness will be Mr. Edward Mihal. 

E D W A R D M I H A L: Good morning everyone. Mr. Chairman, members 

of the Committee, my name is Edward Mihal. I am the owner of Belmont 
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Beverage, 79 Belmont Avenue, Garfield, New Jersey. We are retailers of 

alcoholic beverages, and with this, we are also allowed to sell soda, 

potato chips and pretzels, period. 

When deregulaltull was first arHlUlltiCt:d upprux1mululy lltn:t: 11r 

four years ago, I became very scared and pantc-stricken lLke u lot of 

other people did in our business. I received an invitation from Buy 

Rite to go to one of their meetings, so I went, eager to find out what 

was going on. I learned a lot, and I became more panicked. I don't 

know whether "high-pressured" is the right word to use, but for lack of 

a better choice, I would say I was high-pressured into joining Buy 

Rite, without being asked my financial status, the size and location of 

my store, the type of clientele I have or what I do. 

Well, to make a long story short, Buy Rite proved to be a 

failure for me. After a short time, I went and met with the operator 

of Buy Rite, Mr. Dobbs, and he made plans to visit different stores. 

My store was put on the emergency list. They didn't offer me many 

suggestions, and I later on realized why, because there wasn't much 

they could offer me. I am not located on a main street; I am not 

located on a through street. So, in order to get to my business, you 

have to come specifically to my store. When you are selling at cost, 

twenty to thirty items a week, you have to do a large volume of 

business to try to offset these things. What was happening in my case, 

was that people were coming in with the ads and picking up only what 

was on sale. Being a small, 600 to 700 square foot store, I couldn't 

even properly display other merchandise to catch their eyes, so they 

would walk up to the counter, ask for or pick up what they wanted, and 

out they would go. It was a total loss; I didn't even have enough 

money to pay for the bag, with the cost of joining Buy Rite, the 

the advertising costs, and all the other paraphernalia that went on. 

Well, after a little more than a year, I couldn't pay my 

bills to Buy Rite, and I went on "default" with them. I had a meeting 

with them, and we made arrangements that I could pay off "X' amount of 

dollars. I asked to be released from my contract, but it couldn't be 

done. Well, near the end of my contract -- I guess it had about two 

months to go -- I suppose he saw that I wasn't cooperating, because I 

wasn't selling at cost; I wasn't doing anything that the ad said. He 
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must have qotten complaints and phone calls from customers, and he 

d1:cid1~d lo 11!1 rnP. nut. lie gave me a chance to pay off my debt to him, 

wl11ch 1 had to pay by contract. 

Now, the biggest complaint is that deregulation scared an 

awful lot of people. Deregulation is good for those people, perhaps, 

who have a large store, who have other means of support, or who can 

sell other products. If I may pick on Shop-Rite, Shop-Rite has ten, 

twenty, thirty thousand items to sell; so does A&P. So, if they sell 

something at cost, they can make it up. When you are selling apples, 

and everyone is selling apples at ten cents a pound, the guy who is 

selling them for more than ten cents a pound is not going to do that 

much business. But, when you have ten, twenty, thirty thousand items 

to sell -- this may be an outrageous number, but when you go to a 

supermarket it sure looks like that. If he raises every other item a 

cent, twa cents, three cents or five cents, he has just about made up 

for what he has sold at discount. I believe that in order to maintain 

the present level of business, where not everyone has the same chance, 

because not everyone is capable of doing the same amount of business, 

and not everyone has the same financial backing or the capabilities of 

running a business, at least if regulations were put mare in order, 

such as pricing and newspaper advertising, it would offer those people 

a better chance to combat the giants of the industry. 

As an example, in yesterday's newspaper there was an ad for 

St. Pierre Chablis at $2.99 for four liters. No one in the State can 

even buy it at that price, because it is a 500-case deal. I called 

Kaser, and they apologized. They said, "Gee, we're very sorry, we 

didn't think." I said, "You should have, because I use a lot of your 

products. Now, I'm trying to run through my head, should I do business 

with a concern like yours, that only thinks of the big man?" They 

said, "We are going to compensate for this. Next month, we are going 

to reduce it to a hundred cases." I would like to know, how many 

stores can take in a hundred cases of one product? I don't know if 

there are that many little stores that sell a hundred cases of four 

liter Chablis, total, in a year, never mind taking it in one shipment. 

Take it to a co-op; they say we have co-ops. Our co-op has thirteen 

people. That is approximately eight cases per person. I know some of 
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my co-op members would say, "Gee whiz, my customers have never heard of 

St. Pierre. They are not going to take it. Even if they do take 1t, 

how can we sell it at $2.99, if this is what it cost us? It doesn't 

even pay for the bag." And, what about the time you spend in the 

store, with unemployment the way it is now, and lhe tax revenues 

falling to the Federal and State governments? I believe more concern 

should be put on the entire industry. 

Now, picking on Shop-Rite again -- not Shop-Rite, excu!>l~ me. 

I used that word wrong. The supermarket grocery business has put the 

1 ittle grocery stores and the majority of delicatessens out of 

business. Then they went to work on the drug stores, the automoblle 

industry, with accessory parts, appliances and garden and house 

plants. Take my local supermarket, how many people does it employ? 

Does it employ as many people as it put out of business? I doubt it. 

This country was based on the idea of a fair price for everybody, and I 

believe in a fair price. If you can offer something for less, without 

doing detrimental damage to the entire State, or country, or industry, 

it's fine, but the way we are proceeding now, not only in the liquor 

business, but in deregulating everything, it is only the very, very 

powerful and the very, very rich who are going to exist. If this is 

what we are leading to, I don't advocate it, and maybe this is the 

reason all the other countries in the world are having trouble with 

their people rebelling. You cannot ask a person to work for nothing. 

None of us here put in time. I understand the wholesalers are having 

problems, because the people buying are trying to dictate prices to 

them. "Well, gee, last month you had it for $50.00 a case, and this 

month it's $80. 00 a case." Well, ian' t a man entitled to make a 

profit? 

The costs of operation are getting higher every year, 

utilities, insurances, etc. People want raises. Where is this money 

going to come from? The economy is down, so people are looking to buy 

things at the best possible price they can. So, where do they go? 

They open the newspaper, and on the right-hand side are the food 

items, and on the left-hand side are the alcoholic beverages. Now, 

it's true, they are not coming ling food and liquor in one ad, but they 

are on the same page. When the lady or the man of the house goes 



shopping, where do they go? If they are buying their groceries, 

they'll pick up that $1.99 or $2.99 bottle there. If this continues, 

the only ones left in business will be the large supermarkets, and 

where will the rest of us be, on the outside looking in? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Mihal. I realize you 

have come to the end of expressing your thoughts, and I have one 

question I would like to ask. Earlier, you talked about the St. Pierre 

from Kaser, and you said you called them. Did you try to purchase an 

order, or did you ask whether or not you could purchase? If doing 

this, did they say they didn't have any left? 

MR. MIHAL: No, they didn't. The salesman had only one price 

listed, a twenty-five case price, which is $3.49 a bottle. The five 

hundred case price wasn't even listed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: How did you find out about this? 

MR. MIHAL: I called directly and spoke to the general sales 

manager. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If I may, I would like to turn this 

discussion over to the Director. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Mr. Mihal, what were you told when you 

called? 

MR. MIHAL: He said it was the five hundred case price that 

was posted, and Shop-Rite took advantage of this. I said to Mr. 

Murray, "Isn't that playing favorites? How many stores could take five 

hundred cases?" Then he went into a spiel about making up for it. He 

said, "We realize we, perhaps, make a mistake." 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Did you ask him anything about why they 

told you it was a twenty-five case deal? 

MR. MIHAL: Perhaps the salesman wasn't aware of the fact 

that there was a five hundred case deal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Do you have a salesman who calls on you 

directly from Kaser's? 

MR. MIHAL: Yes, I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Did he point out the St. Pierre 

special? 

MR. MIHAL: To the best of my knowledge, the only one he 

pointed out was the small twenty-five case special. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: And, he did not address the hundred or 

the five hundred, or whatever it was? 

MR. MIHAL: No, the hundred case deal he didn't even know 

about yet, that is for next month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: And, there was no posting in the book 

from Kaser with reference to five hundred cases? 

MR. MIHAL: I couldn't find it • 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: So, to your knowledge then, the bottom 

price, the maximum deal was three dollars and something? 

MR. MIHAL: Three dollars and forty-n1ne cents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Three dollars and forty-nine cents. 

And you said Shop-Rite sold it at what? 

MR. MIHAL: Two dollars and ninety-nine cents. I believe you 

will find it in the newspaper that Mr. Bromley handed you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I do not expect the discussion to 

follow that particular line, but I '11 now open the opportunity of 

questioning Mr. Mihal. Director Vassallo, would you like to continue? 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: No. Thank you, Mr. Mihal. I would just 

ask that you discuss more on this subject with Mr. Pinard after your 

testimony, if you would, please. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Pinard is the gentleman who is 

sitting in the back, the Deputy Director. I '11 start to my right with 

Mr. Jerlat. 

MR. JERLAT: Ed -- may I call you Ed? 

MR. MIHAL: Certainly. 

MR. JERLAT: May I just ask you one question? I can well 

understand your problem, and I can feel for you. We discussed before 

the possibility of a cost price, which does not seem an unreasonable 

plea. What would you feel that your cost -- and I know this would have 

to be done on an average basis -- but, what would your cost actually 

include, taking in your insurance, your gas and electric, your rent, 

etc., etc., taxes, or whatever it happens to be? 

MR. MIHAL: Mr. Napodano said it would vary from store to 

store, but I believe the Federal Department of Commerce has an average 

of approximately 14~o as the average cost of doing business throughout 

the United States. I feel that if the government could come up w1th a 



ltq<Jt'''' yuu lJtlltlltllllUII t'llll cume up wLtll u t iLJlll'<J dl:;o, ur ptll'llup,. ww 

I tm not icmal ntandanl. I'm AUre it is not qntng to make that much of a 

dtfference in your markup, a half of a percent or a percent. But, 

certainly, if everyone had a minimum markup, the tax department would 

love this. They would know you were making "X" percent. In your cost 

of operations, you may pay yourself a higher salary than anyone else, 

but, you know, if you think you're worth $100.00 a day, and the other 

guy thinks he is only worth $50.00 a day, who are we to argue? That is 

the tax department's problem. 

I believe that if there was a minimum markup so as to 

stabilize the pricing and, also, eliminate the price advertising which 

is driving people to certain areas thinking they are getting 100% 

bargains, it would stabilize this industry a lot. 

MR. JERLAT: All right, thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Bromley. 

MR. BROMLEY: Ed, when you were in Buy Rite, who controlled 

the items and prices that appeared in the ads? 

MR. MIHAL: There was a committee selected, which Mr. Dobbs, 

his son and a few members -- approximately four or five members of the 

group -- picked. They were picked, I guess, in conjunction with what 

was posted for that month. But, the price was always agreed upon at 

the beginning, and it was going to be a penny above cost. 

MR. BROMLEY: The price was agreed upon at the beginning when 

you entered Buy Rite? 

MR. MIHAL: Yes, that was the way it was done. 

MR. BROMLEY: It was agreed that the price was to be a penny. 

MR. MIHAL: It was not agreed upon 100%, but this was the 

idea of selling at cost. No one signed a statement, or said, "Yes, I'm 

going to do it." You had the privilege of doing what you wanted, but 

the cost price was suggested. 

MR. BROMLEY: May I question you on how much freedom you had? 

lf a committee met and determined an ad, did you have the right to keep 

your name out of that ad? 

MR. MIHAL: No, that is what you are paid for, but you had 

the right of going along with the ad, or not going along with the ad. 

There was a disclaimer in every single ad which gave you the right to 
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say, "We don't have this item this week," but then, of course, you were 

defeating your purpose by not going along with it. It was pointed out 

to you that if you didn't go along with it, you would be defeat ir1q your 

purpose of belonging to such a group. 

MR. BROMLEY: So, it was then an empty freedom you had, 

because you apparently could not turn anyone away. 

MR. MIHAL: Well, if you did, you were hurting yourself, and 

that is what happened to me. 

MR. BROMLEY: As part of the agreement, did you agree to 

advertise always and only under the Buy Rite name, or could you use 

your own name? 

MR. MIHAL: Nothing was ever spelled out, but when you did 

run the Buy Rite ad, you had to have the Buy Rite logo or symbol in it. 

MR. BROMLEY: And, how about on your store? 

MR. MIHAL: It was suggested that you put up a Buy Rite sign, 

so people would know where you were. 

MR. BROMLEY: How about in-store promotional flyers or things 

of that kind? 

MR. MIHAL: At first they were sent out, but a lot of stores 

didn't want them so they stopped subscribing to them. But, they did 

have them available, banners, window stickers, or whatever you want to 
call them. 

MR. BROMLEY: Maybe you could help us with some previous 

testimony we had from the gentleman from Loch Arbour Liquors about 

geographical exclusivity granted so that members were not--

MR. MIHAL: Yes, he suggested about two miles between stores, 

I believe. That figure seems to remain in my mind. 

Mihal. 

MR. BROMLEY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Tripucka? 

MR. TRIPUCKA: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Garrity? 

MR. GARRITY: Mr. Chairman, I have one question to ask Mr. 

You said that at one point in your dealings with your 

cooperative you were unable to pay their bills. Am I correct In that? 

You s<1irl you qot to B point where you were une~ble to p<~y them for 



MR. MIHAL: Oh, the cost of belonging to the advertising 

group. 

MR. GARRITY: Was it the advertising or the cost of being a 

member there? 

MR. MIHAL: Both. You were mailed a statement monthly, and I 

just found that I could no longer pay for the cost of belonging to the 

group, the advertising and my merchandise. I decided it was more 

important to have merchandise in the store than to pay him. 

MR. GARRITY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: May I just follow through on that 

question? Whether or not you were involved in every ad they placed 

being a member of that Buy Rite, did you have a certain percentage of 

the cost of that ad charged to you? 

MR. MIHAL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Whether you wanted to be in the ad or 

not, it made no difference? 

MR. MIHAL: That is correct. That was your understanding 

when you joined the group, that the cost of the entire ad would be 

shared among all the members equally. I think the straw that broke the 

camel's back was when they decided to go on television. That is when I 

just--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: They decided to go on television? Who 

are they? 

MR. MIHAL: The membership; it was suggested and you voted. 

No one said we had to go along with it. The leader never said, "You 

must do this." It was put up and they voted on it, and majority ruled. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: So, it was a majority vote of those who 

were in attendance at a meeting that made decisions on just what would 

go into the advert ising, the method of advertising and the area of 

advertising? 

MR. MIHAL: Yes. I would also like to point out that I am 

not the only Buy Rite member that has pulled out of the group. There 

have been several failures in Bergen County. There are approximately 

four stores I know of that are no longer in business. So, it is not 

the perfect panacea for everyone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you. Director Vassallo, would 

you care to ask any questions? 
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DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Thank you. At the meeting you went to 

for Buy Rite, you said you were pressured. Can you describe the kind 

of pressure you got and what you were told? 

MR. MIHAL: Well, everyone had a different opinion, the 

gloomy picture that was painted, what was going to happen, what has 

happened in other states, the high risk of being put out of business by 

other groups and that it is the leader who generally succeeds. You 

know, it is like the captain of the team. He calls the plays, and if 

he calls the wrong plays, the team suffers. But, they have had 

experience. They have been in New York State for approximately fifteen 

years, and in other areas, and he painted a good picture of himself, 

you know. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: If they encourage you to sell these 

advertised things at cost, how could you make up for that? 

MR. MIHAL: Well, this was the idea. You were told you would 

sell at cost and it would stimulate business and bring people w. 

Unfortunately, we were not told there is a certain group of people who 

the industry calls "cherry pickers," who only pick what is on sale, 

regardless of the product. If they can't buy it at cost this week, 

they will come back next week, or the following week. We were not 

warned about this. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Did you find that happening in practice? 

MR. MIHAL: Yes, that was the main reason I had to get out. 

Basically, I have a neighborhood store, and people could not comprehend 

that this week it's $5. 99, and the following week, when it is not on 

sale and you have to go to your 20% or 30% markup -- they could just 

not understand it. Some people would buy it, but the majority would 

just leave it. After awhile, I was being told, "Well, Ed, I'll wait. 

You'll have it on sale again." 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Can you give us any opinion, from your 

experience, as to whether these low advertised prices increase 

consumption? 

MR. MIHAL: All I have to say on that is, I have been in both 

ends of the business, the retail liquor business and the bar business. 

There are a certain number of people where price counts. So, if they 

have a dollar and they can get two shots for a dollar, they will go 
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there. And, if they have a dollar, and they go to the other place and 

they only get one drink, they are not going to go there that often. 

There are a certain amount of people who are inclined to drink more 

because the price is less. 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Thank you, Mr. Mihal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: I would like to simply insert in the record the 

definition of cost which you refer to. From 1967 until 1980, at the 

time of deregulation, the definition of cost as used at wholesale pr1ce 

settings was set by the ABC, that is, the formula. Let me quote from 

the 1967 Bulletin of Director Lordi, in which he said, "Actual costs 

shall include at the least, acquisition costs, warehousing, salesmen's 

commissions, permissible discounts and delivery charges." So, this is 

not a new concept. It is something the ABC considered in the past, 

implemented, and discarded in 1980, at the time of deregulation. 

MR. MIHAL: May I point out that no one is infallible. Isn't 

it possible, perhaps, that the ABC Director at that time erred in his 

definition of cost? Now, if you will notice, that cost is only the 

wholesale cost. There is no cost in there to the retailer. Now, what 

if the retailer added the same facts in percentages as the wholesaler 

did? That would certainly raise the cost factor, wouldn't it? 

MR. FELDMAN: I am simply indicating that this is an area 

that the Subcommittee can examine, and then report to the Commission. 

MR. MIHAL: I am following up on your statements, and perhaps 

making them a little stronger. 

MR. FELDMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Farrell? 

MR. FARRELL: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAFFREY: I would like your long-range opinion on this, 

Mr. Mihal. You are suggesting that the present price, the one cent 

above cost, is inequitable in that it is based only on the price you 

must pay your supplier, and does not include normal overhead? 

MR. MIHAL: Correct. 

MR. McCAFFREY: And, you are hopeful that down the road 

someplace the State may come up with a minimum markup that would 
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include some of the causes of complaints, which are not included right 

now. In the event that these hopes of yours ever materialize, what do 

you think the bottom line is, as far as the public is concerned? Right 

now, we hear stories that this is good for the public because it has 

resulted in lower prices. Now, how can you answer that argum1:mt? 

MR. MIHAL: Perhaps my opinion could be prejudiced, because I 

am in the retail end of the business and I am being hurt, but I am 
really and truly trying to be objective in this. I feel the only ones 

who will exist will be the large giants who have something else to sell 

besides alcoholic beverages. I state, again, that no one can sell at 

cost and remain in business. I also further state, I believe that most 

of these people who are the large discount centers are subsidizing 

their businesses with outside monies they have. I have noticed through 

voice information, that most of them are in other types of businesses 

besides the liquor business. They are, perhaps, hoping -- the rumor is 

that when they drive enough of the little people out of business and 

gain control of a majority of the liquor industry, they will be able to 

raise the prices to what they want. When they have eliminated "X" 

number of people, and there is no choice of where to go, or the choice 

is so little or so controlled by price advertising in the newspapers, 

that no one else could afford to fight them, they will do the majority 
of the business. 

MR. McCAFFREY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If there are no further questions, Ed, 

we appreciate your coming before us. The next gentleman will be Mr. 

Richard Knight. I believe, Mr. Knight, you are the owner of Oceanport 

Wine and Liquors, is that correct? 
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R I C H A R D K N I G H T: That is correct. My name is Richard 

Knight. I own Oceanport Wine and Liquors in Oceanport, New Jersey. 

Also, I am President of the Monmouth and Ocean Counties' Liquor Store 

Association. 

I will be speaking for myself and my store, and not for the 

Association at this time. 

In 1977, I purchased a liquor store that was doing about 

$220,000 worth of business a year, gross. Through regulation to the 

point of deregulation, I increased the business 100%, which was 

approximately a two-year period. I did that through providing services 

for my customers, providing my customers with a wider variety of 

products, providing services such as charging, charge accounts in the 

house, as well as credit card charge acounts, by delivering, by 

packaging items, by making up packages, if there was a product they 

didn't have or couldn't get, and I was able to get, I would do it for 

them, also. 

Then, we had deregulation. At that point in time, since 

then, my gross had decreased 29%. I still provide the same kind of 

services that I did before deregulation. I tried, to some degree in my 

limited capacity of store size and storage, to hold a few sales on 

specific items that I could buy at a lower amount of cases. Those 

particular items I have purchased that I am able to put on sale, I 

grant you, will sell. My overall business, however, has diminished 

because I cannot put everything in the store on sale. 

I maintained the markup that we had at the regulation period 

through deregulation. I feel that I am in a business that does not 

provide an awful lot of markup as it is. It is not like furniture, 

jewelry or clothes. We have a small markup, and I thought that was a 

fair markup for the public. Unfortunately, there are others who didn't 

think so, and they went to the penny-over cost, advertising as such 

whether they had the product or not. They cut very deeply into my 

business, as I could tell by not only decreased sales, but by people 

coming in with the advertised products on sale and asking, "Why can't I 

have i.t for the same price?" Primarily, because I don't have the kind 

of storage where I can purchase them and then offer them. Also, the 

increased inflation rate that took place during the initial years that 
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I had the store, had really put me at almost a status quo. I was able 

to meet my expenses all right. I am making a little bit of a profit, 

but, there was no cushion to go back on to buy in larger quantities. 

Knowing my town, if I had the larger quantities, I couldn't necessarily 

sell them all in the the 30-day period that I had to pay. So, to have 

fifty cases of Dewar's would do me no good. I couldn't sell fifty 

cases of Dewar's in three months, let alone 30 days. 

So, now I am in the position of a continued decrease in 

business, to either pour more money into it, as a result of getting 

more loans, or to sell out. My sellout position is not that great, 

because I was heavily financed to take on my store initially. If I 

were to sell it, somebody would have to pick up the financing, and I 

could probably get that covered, and that is all I would walk out with, 

without making a dime. 

I chose, so far, anyway, to try to hold off and to see what 

is going to transpire through this Committee or whatever regulation or 

rules may come down. I don't think I should have to join a coop or a 

Buy Rite, or whatever the case is, just to have a business. I bought 

my business in hopes to be a free enterprise and operate in a 

reasonable way, having reasonable prices. To have to share my profits 

to stay in business with another person who probably doesn't have a 

license -- I don't think any of them own a license -- I don't find that 

to be fair. It is not the American way, if you wilL So, I intend to 

try to stay in the position that I am at. 

To reduce my prices, and to take home less money than I am 

making now, in which case I have taken, personally, a reduction in pay 

two years in a row, and, if I reduce my prices, all I am going to do 

is, perhaps, sell a little bit more of the product that I am reducing 

to no greater profit ratio. So, I don't find that to be a very 

enlightening thing to do, either. 

I really don't know where to go at this point. That is why I 

am here. That is about what I have to say. I believe that the pricing 

is predatory in the papers. I haven't, because people bring them in 

and wonder why I can't sell something for the same price as somebody 

else. I hate to ask them, "Do you make a profit when you work? Do you 

get paid, because I am waiting to get paid, too?" The only way I can 
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do it is by making a profit. It is the only way to run a business. 

You can't really come out and tell people that. 

I have nothing else to say, other than, I don't believe that 

a liquor store, or any store, for that matter, should be a store that 

is run just on cost, or just on the financial value of it. If you 

can't give your patrons something in return for them purchasing 

something from you other than the best price, it doesn't seem like the 

proper way to run the store. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Knight, may I ask, how many other 

stores in your immediate area, or in your municipality, are there? 

And, do you feel -- I am talking now, since you are in the "D" licensed 

area they are having the same types of problems you are? Do you 

know of any situation that might be the same? 

MR. KNIGHT: In my town, there are no other "D" licenses. 

There are other licenses on the outskirts of my town, which have 

several exits to make people go to them. One part of my town can go 

across the bridge and be at a Buy Rite. So, business that I would have 

to say I acquired prior to that, through my services and whatever I 

used as a sales pitch, has, again, or has then changed and has gone 

back to a Buy Rite for price purposes only. 

McCaffrey? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: We will start on my left. Mr. 

MR. McCAFFREY: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Napodano? 

MR. NAPODANO: Yes. I just have one question, Mr. Knight. I 

am not quite sure I understood what you said. Did I understand you, 

Mr. Knight, to say that you are merchandizing at the present time on 

pre-deregulation margins? 

MR. KNIGHT: That is correct. 

MR. NAPODANO: And you are also doing that today? 

MR. KNIGHT: That is correct. 

MR. NAPODANO: I wasn't sure if you said that. 

MH. KNLGHl: I have scotch, rye, vodka, and gin, in the half 

qallon size, and, perhaps, two wines at a little bit lesser price. 

MR. NAPODANO: I have no other questions. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: No questions. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Bromley? 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Knight, do you cash checks in your store? 

MR. KNIGHT: Yes, I do. 

MR. BROMLEY: Do you know your customers' names? 

MR. KNIGHT: Generally? Yes, I do. 

MR. BROMLEY: Do you make local deliveries? 

MR. KNIGHT: Yes, I do. 

MR. BROMLEY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Jerlat? 

MR. JERLAT: I have just one question, Mr. Knight. Do you 

feel that you have lost equity in the store that you may have built up 

over the past seventeen years? 

MR. KNIGHT: No, seven years. 

MR. JERLAT: Oh, seven years? I'm sorry. 

MR. KNIGHT: Lost equity in the store? Yes. I would have to 

place it close to -- based on how I purchased it, my increase in 

business and how I would sell it, and the variable of that gross versus 

the cost -- if I were to sell it today as opposed to when I could have 

sold it' maybe in the vicinity of $100,000. My problem is, though, I 

don't think I could sell it that easily today because I have a store 

that is 1,200 square feet. I have an BOO square foot selling area. I 
have virtually no storage, because the other footage from the BOO is 

primarily my beer box in the back. I don't have any room to move 

within the shopping center. In the town, there is no commercial 

property available. I can't move; I can't get in; I can't get out; and 

I cannot sell any products other than liquor in the store, as a result 

of the lease within the shopping center. I am just sort of stuck 

there. So, if anybody in their right mind, I would have to say, were 

to come and ask if there was an advantage to purchasing my store, to be 

honest with them, I couldn't give them one, unless something were to 

change where price wasn't the only item of a sale. 

MR. JERLAT: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much, Mr. Knight • I 

appreciate your coming here today. The next gentleman is Mr. Alan 

Stedman, President of the South Jersey Package Stores' Association. I 

believe that is S-T-E-0-M-A-N. Is that correct? 
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A l A N S T £ 0 M A N: That is correct, yes. I am a "0" licensee, 

as well. As you said, I am the President of the South Jersey Package 

Stores' Association, which consists of seven counties that contain 400 

broad "C" and "D" licenses. I am here today, basically, to represent 

that Association, which is part of the New Jersey Liquor Stores' 

Association. 

As an Association, we would like to state our unequivocal 

support of our State organization's positions, as they were recently 

outlined by Fred Guarnieri. 

If the State of New Jersey and the Legislature that 

represents the people of the State of New Jersey, are committed to the 

concept of temperance and moderation, if they are committed to an 

orderly marketplace in the liquor industry, if it is committed to 

proper enforcement of strict control in the distribution market, if 

they are committed to a fair chance for small businesses to survive in 

this State, and if they find agreement with these basic comments, I 

think they will find favor with our solutions to the current problems 

of the retail licensee. When I am talking about a retail licensee, I 

am speaking for the overwhelming majority of retail licensees, for 

there is but a tiny minority of these thousands of licensees in New 

Jersey who are involved in multiple store chains, franchise operations, 

who primarily are the licensees that seem to seek to disrupt the 

marketplace and thereby dominate and destroy other licensee through 

predatory advertising and pr1c1ng. We, as small businesses, oppose 

this effort, their effort to destroy our businesses, to disrupt the 

market, and to basically deny the original legislative intent of Title 

33, which is to promote temperance. We are not saying that people 

should have to drink a lot less, but we are in a posit ion with the 

Legislature and the pressures all around us, calling for strict 

control, calling for less or more moderate consumption. Why are we in 

this contradictory position? 

We ask your support to rebalance this marketplace and right 

the wrongs and mistakes that have been made in our recent past. 

As a retail licensee myself, I don't generally like sharing 

specifics about my business. I don't want the Committee to assume that 

the only licensees who have been hurt by deregulation and by these 
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practices of predatory pnc1ng, have only been the very smallest of 

businesses being affected. My stores, and I have two, have 

approximately 6,000 square feet of selling space, which is, I think, 

basically larger than most stores in North Jersey. Only the larger 

stores, chains and so forth, who have sufficient capital and who sell 

other products at the same time such as has been d 1 m~ussed 

before have basically more space than we do. 

As I got into my business in 1976 -- I bought my first 

license in 1977, and the second license with the maximum which you can 

hold, which is two licenses, I determined a marketing strategy of 

staying with the wine business, because th1s was the growing part. 

This is where your chance to make money was the best. It was the most 

interesting part of the business -- I determined that this was the best 

hedge against future problems. The business prospered fairly well 

under regulation, and even slightly under deregulation. It wasn't 

until about a year ago that two price cutters came into my area, 

namely, one very large, committed not only to a few specials 

advertised, but to a broad range of every product in the store being 

sold below a realistic cost. It is not until someone like that comes 

into your area that you really feel the full effect of what they can do 

to your business. 

I think it is fair to say that through one store, which is 

located in the same town as this price cutter, but not next door and 

not two blocks away, but, say a half mile away in the same town, we 

lost 25~o to 30% of the business this year. That is significant. If 

any of you were in business the same way, you would feel the same 

concern under these pressures and trying to survive in this business 

marketplace. I have nothing further to say. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: May I ask you a question that would 

lead to conjecture on your part? Where do you feel the ABC, the State 

Legislature and the State of New Jersey, in general, could go with 

reference to this industry, to right some of these wrongs you have 

stated as wrongs, and be helpful in, using your phrase, stablizing the 

market? 

MR. STEDMAN: The first two points that Fred Guarnieri 

indicated in his presentation, number one being the redefinition of 

46 



cost to a realistic cost, which is provided to other segments of our 

industry but denied to us. This is the main thing that will stablize 

the business, because the people who can subsidize their selling of 

liquor through the selling of other products, such as grocery stores, 

large supermarkets, these people have an opportunity to subsidize their 

1 iquor business. There are other people who are subsidizing their 

liquor business through not selling products, but just getting 

money. I am sure if somebody could prove exactly what is going on, 

there would be action taken. It is very difficult to pin that down. I 

will not engage in a situation of name calling or accusations, but, 

there is a joke in our industry that these people exist and do this, 

and we cannot prove anything about it. It is illegal and they are 

doing it. If I could give you information, I would, but, naturally I 

don't stand in somebody else's store and watch what goes on. I don't 

watch what passes between people's hand. My job is in my store. I 

sympathize with the ABC in their difficulty, but nevertheless, it is a 

difficult thing that needs to be corrected. This is why our members 

ask, primarily, for redefinition of cost, because flowing from that 

wi 11 be a reduced effectiveness of this predatory advertising. The 

predatory pricing will help take care of predatory advertising, if it 

is eliminated. 

I don't know if that answers your question, but those are the 

two major things we are looking at - predatory pricing and predatory 

advertising, which allow certain licensees to attempt to dominate and 

drive other people out of business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much. I will now go to 

the panel. Are there any questions? Mr. Bromley? 

MR. BROMLEY: I have a question for Mr. Stedman, to 

clarify his reference to predatory pricing. I was wondering if you 

were referring to pricings stated in Subchapter 24-12, "Alcoholic 

beverages at unreasonably low prices for the purposes of destroying 

competition or eliminating a competitor." Is that the type of pricing? 

MR. STEDMAN: That is correct. It has been an unofficially 

stated aim of at least one retailer in my area to do exactly that. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Chairman, for the record, retailers are not 

encompassed in the prohibition, of the Subchapter 24 prohibition of 
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predatory pricing. It reads, " ••• that no manufacturer, supplier, 

importer, brand registrant, wholesaler, distributor, privileged to 

engage in the commerce of alcoholic beverage in or within this State 

and those parties alone ••• " You do not hear retailer. We would be 

happy if that regulation read, "licensee." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: That is something we can address in our 

executive discussions. I am sure Mr. Bromley will remind us when we 

are ready to sit down, to do just that. Thank you very much, Mr. 

Stedman. I have on the list before me just four more people who 

would like to speak. I wi 11 name them in order so you wi 11 know just 

where you are. Mr. Frank Pugliese, you will be next, then Mr. Maurer, 

then Mr. Calvina, and then Mr. Jarvis. If there is anyone else who 

would like to add their names to that list, please give them to us, and 

we will be happy to have you join us. 

F R A N K P U G l I E S E: Trying to be very popular with the 

group, I will be very short. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: You are Mr. Pugliese from Millburn? 

MR. PUGLIESE: No. Millville. My name is Frank Pugliese 

from Millville, New Jersey. I have had a package store for twenty-six 

years. We are certainly not the biggest and not the largest. 

Since deregulation, we find we have to work harder and do 

more volume, with less profit. This is the nature of the beast. This 

is not a complaint. The question was asked several moments ago, "What 

can be done? What single thing can be done?" In my estimation -

short of rescinding deregulation and going back to the industry that we 

had at one time, which was raped by every portion of the industry, 

starting with the retailer, the wholesaler, and the legislators all had 

a hand in ruining a very orderly industry I think the very first 

thing that has to be done is to make it possible for any retailer, "mom 

and pop" stores, large stores, small stores, intermediate stores, to 

make a profit. It is the top line that we are concerned with, the 

profit, the beginning point, gross profit. 

So, it seems to me that the startinq point is to define cost 

and add a mandatory gross profit that everybody would work by. That is 

my statement. 
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Pugl i1~He? 

Pugliese. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Do we have any questions of Mr. 

( nn rnsponse) None? 

We appreciate your taking 

MR. PUGLIESE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: We 

Well, thank you very much, Mr. 

the time and coming here today. 

are interested in even the short 

statements as you have addressed us. Next, we will hear from Mr. 

Maurer. Since you seem to be coming well equipped, Mr. Maurer, I am 

going to make a statement while you are sitting down and getting your 

papers together. 

I notice that we have had mainly representatives of the "D" 

licenses today. I noticed very little input from the "C" licenses, 

with reference to the trade practices in the industry. If there are 

any "C" licensees here today who would like to address this Committee 

with reference to the practices that are taking place, we certainly 

wi 11 be happy to hear from you also. Thank you, Mr. Maurer, for 

allowing me to--

G E 0 R G E C. M A U R E R: Mr. Chairman, gentlemen of the 

Committee, I am George Maurer, President of the Hudson/Bergen Package 

Stores' Association. A majority of our members could not possibly 

attend this hearing this morning, because they do not have the luxury 

of having an employee to replace them while they come down here. So, a 

number of them called me when they heard about this and gave me a lot 

of questions, which I couldn't answer, and a lot of statements that 

they wanted me to present here today. These are from our members who 

are interested in what you are doing today, but, because they are small 

businessmen, they could not get away from their stores. 

One gentleman who used to be with the Buy Rite group wanted 

to know how a man could come over here from New York City, have no 

beneficial interest in any license, and help set prices for licensees 

in the State of New Jersey? 

Last night, around midnight, a member of our Association came 

to my house with an ad from a new A & P operation in Westwood, where 

they advertised that they are a liquor warehouse. Now, I am sure they 

do not have a warehousing license. As a liquor warehouse, I know I 

cannot buy from them. I can buy from Ri ternan, Rheinfeld and other 

1 iquor warehouses. I think this is a very misleading word, in fact, 
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one of the most misleading words that could be used in an ad to the 

public. I have a copy of that ad here, which I will turn over to you. 

Also, I have an ad, "Bergen County Buy Rite Liquor Warehouse, 

230 Main Street, Ridgefield Park." That is not a warehouse either. 

Should we all advertise our businesses as warehouses now? "Brewers' 

World, 10,000 square foot warehouse of discount liquor, beer, wine and 

soda." There must be some control as to what these people can say in 

an ad. They are definitely not warehouses. 

The question came up, "If I, as a retailer, went across the 

street to another retailer and said, "Stan, tomorrow, let's start 

selling Budweiser beer, loose cans, at a $1.00 apiece" 1t is my 

understanding that that would be illegal. However, I have ads with 

twenty-eight and thirty stores where some committee, some group, or all 

of them, agreed to set prices. That is something I can't do with the 

man across the street. 

I noticed a disclaimer. I also noticed that the prices were 

set by one individual store in the group. One of my members would like 

to know how a man who has no beneficial license in store B-- Let's say 

the man in Store A has no beneficial interest in the license of Store 

B. How could he set the price for that store? I think these are 

questions that this Committee should really take into consideration. 

Now, Alexanders. Many times their ads say, "Was $22.95, is 

$18.45" or "now, $18.45." We have no prices in the State of New 

Jersey, retail prices. His might have been $22.95, but somebody else's 

might have been $17.44 all the time. I don't know whether or not this 

should be in an ad. I could say, "Dewar's, was $42.00 at 1.75, on sale 

for $25.00." I don't know. 

I had a very interesting experience about three weeks ago. I 

was having my car serviced on Route 46. While it was being serv1ced, I 

stopped in a restaurant for some coffee. There were five or six 

Riteman trucks. The drivers were at the booth next to me. One 

mentioned the fact that he didn't have a bad day today. He only had a 

couple of stops because most of his stuff was going to a new Shop Rite. 

I heard him mention the name, Singer, stating that this must be his 

seventh store. I don't know of a Singer, and I am not familiar with 

his situation. I don't even know what store they were talking about, 
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but, we have a license limitation in the State of New Jersey. I think 

there should be some sort of an investigation into two or three price 

cutting retailers who now have interests, maybe hidden, in more than 

two licenses. 

Selling one cent above cost, gentlemen, is really selling 

below cost. If you sell an item at one cent above cost and put it in a 

number twenty heavy bag, you have already sold below cost. That 

customer is going out of there with an item below cost. 

These are the items that my members asked me to bring forward 

to you. I appreciate your listening to them. I am sorry that they 

could get here themselves to talk to you. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you, Mr. Maurer. Are there any 

questions from the Committee? Mr. Farrell? 

MR. FARRELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have a question. 

This business of predatory advertising, I guess, is a recurring theme. 

I would just like to ask whether or not this witness, or any other 

witnesses who are still here, have any specific proposals on how 

advertising should be regulated. A couple of things come to mind. Are 

you suggesting that there should be prior submission of all ads to the 

government? You cannot think about the bureaucratic problems you 

might have, and the increase in staff. I would suppose it would be 

necessary. Another alternative might be a set of criteria which would 

have to be considered and adopted. I guess you would have to strictly 

enforce violations. Then you would start running into free speech 

problems. I think if you are going to address advertising, you really 

have to tell us how you think it should be regulated and give us some 

direction as to what you would like, because it is a very sensitive 

area. 

MR. MAURER: You know, in each municipality, I believe it is 

by State law, there is a limitation as to the number of "D" licenses. 

I am sure that was set up so there would be enough "D" licenses to 

accommodate the public or the population of that town. Now, with this 

type of advert isinq, you are drawing the people out of that town. 

Personally, I don't think liquor, as a controlled item, should be 

advertised at all, especially priced. 
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MR. FARRELL: All right. So, one suggestion would be an 

outright prohibition on any advertisements pertaining to retailing 

alcohol? 

MR. MAURER: They are doing it on television. You wtll never 

see liquor advertisements on television. 

MR. FARRELL: Yes, I am aware of that. And if that is the 

proposal of this witness, let's have that on record. If the other 

witnesses have alternative proposals which are less sweeping in scope, 

I would like to hear them. If we are going to address this, I would 

like to know how you would propose to address advertising mechanically. 

MR. MAURER: Well, why should a liquor store in Wayne, New 

Jersey advertise in Englewood, New Jersey? In other words-

MR. FARRELL: Don't misunderstand me. 

MR. MAURER: This group of business--

MR. FARRELL: I understand exactly what you are saying. I 

don't agree or disagree with you. I have more to learn about this. 

But, we need to know how you would propose to regulate it, 

mechanically, what you think should be known. How can we put your 

thoughts into action? What would you like us to do? 

MR. MAURER: I am going to have to give that some thought 

MR. FARRELL: Okay. 

MR. MAURER: But, I think if it could be limited to the area 

served by that license, I mean to the customers that they are supposed 

to be serving, for the convenience of those customers. 

MR. FARRELL: So, a geographical limitation, perhaps, in the 

newspapers that are only distributed in the municipality in which the 

liquor license is held? 

MR. MAURER: Fine. 

MR. FARRELL: All right. That is another suggestion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Are there any other questions? First, 

we will start on the end. Mr. Jerlat? 

MR. JERLAT: George, I would like to ask you a question. 

I have to agree with what you are saying about selling below cost. If 

a cost price was set, with your cost built into the price, cost price, 

and we talked about a one cost bottle price; in other words, what the 

price of one bottle would be, no one could advertise or sell under that 
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price. How would you feel, that that may alleviate some of the 

problem? I'm not talking about alleviating all of the problem, because 

I can see there is a big problem. 

MR. MAURER: Just off the top of my head, I am against it. 

Any minimum that does not take into consideration, rent, license costs, 

heat, and employees, for those who have them, would be self-defeating. 

A definition of cost, I believe, a redefinition, should include items 

of that nature, which would put it a lot higher than what you are 

suggesting, Mr. Jerlat. 

MR. JERLAT: I think you misunderstood what I said. 

MR. MAURER: No, I know. 

MR. JERLAT: I'm talking about cost price. 

MR. MAURER: If it costs me $3.00 a bottle, and it costs 

somebody else $28.00 a case, you say I cannot advertise it under $3.00? 

MR. JERLAT: No, no. You misunderstood what I was talking 

about. If we redefine cost, such as, with your gas, electric, 

insurance, and everything else built in, if the definition of cost was, 

let's take a figure of 20% or 22%, because I think that is one of the 

figures that New York may have used, possibly, that would be a cost 

price beyond whatever that one cost bottle price would be. And, if a 

one cost bottle price, let's take a case of Seagrams, whatever the one 

battle price would be, would be the lowest price that anybody could 

advertise, including the cost. In other words, actually, what would 

happen is, there would be no need for predatory pricing because there 

wouldn't be any predatory pricing whatsoever. I am just asking you how 

you would--
MR. MAURER: Well, if that would stop predatory pricing, I 

would be very much in favor of it, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Is that all, Mr. Jerlat? 

MR. JERLAT: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Bromley? 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Maurer, what do you think the benefit might 

be of a situation with a regulation that provided a licensee who 

advertised must advertise by himself, his own prices at his own 

location? 
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MR. MAURER: That is what I was trying to get across to Mr. 

Farrell. I believe that would be the only right way to permit 

advertising. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Maurer, I would like to ask you if you have 

an understanding as to reason with a difference in treatment between 

people who buy cooperatively and people who advertise cooper at i vel y. 

And, I would like to inquire as to whether or not you know the reason 

why people who buy cooperatively have to register and take a license, 

identify themselves and pay a few (inaudible), and those who advertise 

cooperatively who have no such process? Have you any idea why that is? 

MR. MAURER: No, I don't. You got me there. I think those 

who are buying cooperatively are being discriminated against. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Maurer, I would like to inquire as to 

whether or not you understand the reason that there is a limitation on 

people who buy cooperatively; namely, in the current year, while there 

is no apparent limitation on those who choose to advertise 

cooperatively? 

MR. MAURER: I understand that Mr. Degnan, I believe it was, 

set up the number who could buy cooperatively as a number that would 

not exceed the largest buying co-op in existence during regulation, 

which was, I believe, A & P. But, I don't know why he didn't go any 

further and limit the number of advertisers. No, I don't. 

MR. BROMLEY: Just one question, and that is, is there a 

reason, Mr. Maurer, for there to be a prohibition against any 

unlicensed individual participating in cooperative buying while there 

is no such limit or prohibition on advertisers? 

MR. MAURER: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: What I was going to say, Mr. Bromley, 

is, I am sure that Mr. Maurer is not really the type of person, or the 

person to be asking the type of questions that you have put forth, but, 

I am sure they are questions you can put forth to this Committee, that 

we can investigate and continue further 

knowledgeable. Thank you, Mr. Maurer. 

today. 

on, as far as making ourselves 

We appreciate your being here 

MR. MAURER: With your permission, I would like to leave 

these ads. 
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them. 

A~iSLMBLYMAN MAHKEIH: Yeu. We would be very happy to have 

We will use them in our discussions and deliberations, I am 

sure. There are two remaining on the list. The next gentleman is Mr. 

Tony Calvina, from Butler, New Jersey. Then, we will hear from Mr. 

Jarvis. He is the last speaker today, unless, as I said, others come 

in and would like to address this Committee. We would be happy to add 

anyone to the list. Thank you. 

T 0 N Y C A L V I N 0: Thank you, gentlemen. I want to thank you 

for this opportunity to be here. My name is Tony Calvina. I am the 

President of the North Jersey Liquor Stores' Association, which is 

affiliated with the New Jersey Liquor Stores' Association. I am here 

to speak not for myself, but just to reinforce what the speakers before 

me have brought out. 

What you have heard this morning from our Association is, 

thousands of hours of arguing and trying to be helpful to the Director, 

trying to be helpful to the State of New Jersey, and trying to be 

helpful to our members, in order for us to come here and be subjected 

to what we have been so far. You must realize that we, from the New 

Jersey Liquor Stores' Association, think that perhaps predatory price 

advertising is the immediate action that can be taken to save our 

industry. We started with thirteen points when deregulation came into 

effect. We have compromised to a point, however, I think we only 

mentioned three or four today. There is so much that I could talk 

about you will notice that I have no notes. Perhaps I would better 

serve my members if I would offer to be a sacrificial lamb and just say 

to the panel that I am open to any questions. 

My heart is with the retailer. I represent 155 in my own 

little Association, and I am part of the State Assocation. So, I would 

1 ike you gentlemen to feel free to ask me any questions, be it on 

credit, advertising, or suggestions. 

If I may start with Mr. Farrell. Mr. Farrell, you brought up 

a very good point. I am glad to see that someone wants to do 

something. My immediate answer to you would be, you can't stop 

advertising, because as soon as you do that, the newspapers -- and we 

do have represent at ion here 

could stop price advertising. 

would be down on our backs. But, we 

Shop Rite could say, "Why pay more?" and 
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list every item that they want to sell, but with no prices. That would 

be something, I think, that would not interfere with any legal 

ramifications. That would give us a chance to reeducate ourselves and 

survive. 

So, I am open to any questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Maybe we could get into somet hing with 

reference to credit, Mr. Calvina. I would like to get a little more 

input. Let me say that you are not here as a sacrificial lamb, that 

this Committee has been formed through legislative act ion, and that we 

have the opportunity of also having the Director of the ABC with us. 

You have legislators and representatives of all phases of the industry, 

on this Subcommittee, as well as on the Commission. We are here with 

one interest in mind, and that is to help the State of New Jersey. In 

helping the State of New Jersey, we help its citizens and we also help 

its businessmen. That is the bottom line. That is what we are here 

for. Any information that you and the rest of the members of your 

Association can give us, that we in turn can discuss, we, I am sure, 

wi 11 be putting forth with recommendations to the Governor, to the 

State Legislature, and to the Director, Mr. Vassallo. So, you are not 

here as a sacrificial lamb; consider yourself here as a very 

informative representative of the industry whose knowledge we are going 

to try to--

MR. CALVINO: Fine. As far as credit, I think I can s um that 

up in one sentence. I think the only objection the retailers and the 

licensees have is the cross-reference. I don't think there is any 

objection to a 30-day credit. We appreciate the fact that Budweiser 

will lend us their beer for a couple of weeks until we sell it, and we 

understand that that is a terrific help to the smaller person. I think 

the only real object ion we have is cross-reference. If you buy bread 

from one place, they · can't boycott you from buying milk, if I were 

talking about a supermarket. It is just so unfair. That is all I have 

to say about credit. The 30-day credit is fine. We are not asking for 

an extension. We don't want to turn this into a threat, "if we can't 

cross-reference, we are going t o cut you down." Well, I have an answer 

to that, too. All you have to do is finance yourself for the first 

week, and then you are really on C.O.D., anyway. Your bills come due 

every week, and you are-- I t i s not a threat. 
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AS~~FMflL YMAN MARKEIH: With refe renee to anol hP. r aren, ::md 

Lh i. s i.s the purchusing of the number of cases that we heard a speaker 

ear 1 ier in this meeting address, where he had one price given to him 

for a number of cases purchased, and there were available different 

prices that were never made available to him, until he so requested the 

information of the company. Can you give us any input in reference to 

that area? 

MR. CALVING: Well, I think you heard, from the laughter, 

that it was perfectly legal. There was a 500-case deal. If you wanted 

to buy it and there were 500 cases, he is not restricting you from 

buying it. We can't do that. Like I say, there is a certain amount of 

common sense that should be addressed when we talk about pricing. And, 

you also have to understand the complexity. I followed your career 

somewhat in the past several years, and you were involved in other 

areas of business. What you are trying to do here, is satisfy a 

$50,000 to $75,000 gross sale per year, and some undoing in the 

millions. There is just no way you can come up with a purchasing 

program that can satisfy both ends. 

Someone made a suggestion about a single bottle price. There 

again, conceivably, that could be a way to stop the rapid deterioration 

of our business. If I am answering your question correctly, there is 

no way that you can limit the wholesaler from offering 100-case deals 

or 500-case deals. There is no way. All we are asking for is a fair 

share of our market. There has been an awful lot of talk about 

supermarkets. If you follow the trends, you have the small stores, and 

you have the supermarkets, and there was disaster when they came in. 

All I can tell you -- this is probably out of order when they can 

we won't person who slices bologna $179.00 for working on a Sunday, 

won't have compet i. tors too long, if they keep doing that. 

just a question of trying to keep us sol~ent until 

So, it is 

this thing 

stablizes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you. We will now go to the 

Committee for questioning. I will start on my right this time. Mr. 

Jerlat? 

MR. JERLAT: I would like to ask one question, Tony. In lieu 

of the feeling throughout the nation and throughout the State of New 

57 



Jersey today regarding alcoholic beverages, and the feeling that there 

should be educational programs regarding alcoholic beverages, and 

rehabilitation programs and getting the drunk drivers off the rosd, do 

you feel it is important in the State New Jersey that we should he 

selling alcoholic beverages at the lowest price in the land? 

MR. CALVINO: That is a good question. In all fairnes s to 

Director Vassallo, it wasn't the present Director. In some of my 

testimony with the previous Director and the previous Administration, I 

was told that if I was for tolerance and I owned a liquor store, the 

next time someone bought a 1.75 liter of Smirnoff, for example, that I 

should tell them, "Don't you think you should buy just a liter, or a 

pint?" That is the way I was ridiculed in public. So, in answer to 

your question, there is definitely a need for education in the use of 

alcohol. I think, perhaps, we should concentrate on the grammar school 

level. I hope I'm not asked to back this with facts, but, I believe 

there ·is alcohol abuse in grammar schools, as low as the third and 

fourth grades, as I understand, in the State of New Jersey. So, yes, 

in answer to that part of your question, we do need an educational 

program, probably at the kindergarten level. 

Now, low prices. Do they necessarily foster more drinking? 

They would have to, for two reasons. You mentioned drunken driving. 

If I were to have a party, I think I would probably go to Shop Rite and 

buy twelve gallons of that $2.99 wine. Here again, out of order 

possibly, I resent, "It's Miller Time." Now you have sports idols 

showing how nice it is to drink beer. I think that is wrong. 

MR. JERLAT: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If I might, I would like to have you, 

or maybe some of the Committee members also get into the problems of 

violations of the licensee, which you are representing. I know we have 

a law of a photo ID in this State. I am just wondering if you feel 

that there may be any areas that we could address as a Committee with 

reference to the proofing and the responsibilities of those who are 

purchasing alcoholic beverages in the State? 

MR. CALVINO: As far as that, I know we are on record, the 

New Jersey liquor stores, as favor i ng the photo ID, and we think that 

this would be a big deterrent. I also think what t he Committee should 
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cunsider if->, some kind of serious penalty for a person who gives false 
proof, perhaps a relr:~tive, a sister or brother who is similar in 

height, size and coloring. That, I think, would be a deterrent. As 

far as our Association is concerned, if a licensee knowingly sells 

alcohol to a juvenile purposely to make a profit, we will back the ABC 

1 Dmcl in any kind of penalty they wish to bestow upon them. But, 

what we resent is the fact that a person can come in with a false ID. 

And here again, even though the age is twenty-one now, there are some 

very young looking twenty-one year old people. We just think that some 

of the responsibility should be, perhaps, put on the person who tries 

to make the purchase. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you. Mr. Garrity, I believe you 

are next, since Mr. Tripuka had to leave us. 

MR. GARRITY: I have just one question, and that has to do 

with the large quantities of products you mentioned that some 

wholesalers may offer. You have, I understand from your testimony, 155 

members in your Association? 

MR. CALVINO: That's right. 

MR. GARRITY: On a 500 case price of, let's say a 500-case 

slot offer, how many of your wholesalers might be able to buy that? 

How many of your members or retailers might be able to buy a 500 case 

of Smirnoff, let's say? 

MR. CALVI NO: 

there would be very few 

MR. GARRITY: 

MR. CALVINO: 

MR. GARRITY: 

MR. CALVINO: 

MR. GARRITY: 

If you are saying a 150-case lot of Smirnoff, 

of.· my members. 

If you pin it down, about how many? 

I would say, possibly five. 

Out of 155? 

Yes. 

Out of a 2,000 case lot of beer, one brand, how 

many of your members would be able to buy that? 

MR. CALVINO: Maybe 20%. 

MR. GARRITY: Okay. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Director? 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: There are many, many question I would 

like to address to Mr. Calvina, since he said he would be a sacrificial 

lamb. But, perhaps I will pass to the other members of the 

Subcommittee, since I always have access to him at the Commission. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: All right. Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: I have a very brief quest ion. The Chairman 

asked you about proofing. He talked about minors. What, tn your 

opinion, is the maximum proof? Should there be a 1 imitation on the 

alcoholic strength which is available for sale to consumers? We have 

heard where people will buy a certain brand of a very high proof 

alcoholic beverage, put it in with a mixer and create a very, very 

potent kind of product for a sale, or rather for use at a picnic where 

a lot of minors are available. Do you have any thinking on that? 

Secondly, we spoke about maximum. Do you feel there is a limitation 

that the Committee should consider on the minimum size? For example, 

are miniatures in the public's best interest, in view of the moderate 

and temperate theme and the fact that minors find it available, 

particularly when talking about high schools and so on? What is your 

opinion on those two items, those two questions? 

MR. CALVINO: I think there were three. The first question, 

about the higher proof of a product, which will remain nameless but 

which was just recently introduced to the State of New Jersey, I 

happened to have attended a picnic where I saw a garbage bag. 

Understand, this is a very common thing -- a garbage bag inside a 

garbage can, filled with Hawaiian Punch and icecubes, spiked with -- we 

are not mentioning it -- a very, very high proof alcohol, and there 

were many people drinking it. That wasn't actually a liquor store 

problem or a consumption problem. It was a private picnic. I'm not in 

favor it. I think we can live without that particular high proof 

alcohol. 

The next question you asked me was about miniatures. 

Miniatures are one of the things that the package stores were given in 

deregulation. That was supposed to help us make up for the business we 

lost. I can speak for my Association. We would gladly give up 

miniatures and work something out. I don't think they help. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Is that all, Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Farrell? 

MR. FARRELL: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Napodano? 

MR. NAPODANO: I have a question, but. I will defer. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: All right. Thank you. Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAFFREY: No brief questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: No brief questions? I will come back 

to you in case some of the information is forthcoming. 

anything, Mr. Vassallo? 

Do you have 

DIRECTOR VASSALLO: Nothing at this time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: We thank you very much for being 

with us. 

MR. CALVINO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I will ask the final person to come 

before us this morning, Mr. Jarvis. If we have someone else other than 

Mr. Jarvis, I will take someone else. 

W I l L I A M J A R V I 5: My name is William Jarvis. I represent 

the Essex County Package Stores' Association. I am a relative newcomer 

to the alcohol industry. However, in the last forty-seven months since 

I have been in the business, I have been forced to age rapidly in order 

to survive in what I consider a volatile industry. 

It was of interest to me 'to note that deregulation seemed to 

have been geared to the retailers' level, and the retailers were 

singled out to bear the brunt of deregulation. Entering the business, 

I noted a dual type of attitude, one regulation or enforcement for the 

alcohol industry, and another set for our regular business. For 

example, if a customer or an employee would commit an offense at a 

department store, that person would be held accountable. On the other 

hand, if an offense is committed within a retail liquor store by an 

employee or a customer, the owner of that store is held accountable. 

In most instances, this is not fair to the retailer. 

Deregulation, as I understood it, was designed to benefit the 

consumer. And, when one reads the newspaper, it appears that may be 

perceived. I say perceived, but I am not sure that it has. After 

deregulation, the top twenty-five brands of spirits increased in 

price. This, coupled with the advertising list that we see every week 

and the ads that you have seen today, would suggest that in some areas, 

customers and consumers have received bargains. But, if you look at 

this statewide, could we say that consumers as a whole have benefited 

from deregulation, that they get a better price? We questioned this. 
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Deregulation was supposed to be two-tiered. I call into mind 

the standing, that is the wholesale level, as well as the retail 

level. When you check the prices today that a retailer must pay for his 

product, one would say it would appear that the emphasis and the- brunt 

of deregulation are at the retailers' level, and not at the 

wholesaler's level. 

Wholesalers who have exclusive rights to a product seem to be 

contradictory to the idea of competitive spirit within the marketplace. 

It seems to me that that has a tendency to restrict competition, and 

does not serve in the best interest of the consumer. 

If you want to have a fair market for the consumer, then I 

think, we should deregulate the wholesale level as well. In our 

thinking, the latter, as well as the spirit of deregulation, have not 

been met. 

The state of the economy adversely impacted on our industry 

in 1982. As most of you are aware, we had a negative growth rate in 

our industry last year. In the City of Newark, we had a total of 344 

alcoholic beverage businesses on default in March of 1983. Included in 

this group were approximately 37% of the distribution licenses. Such a 

picture cannot help the consumer. This impacted on the City's tax 

base, as indicated by a proposal by the Administration to increase the 

license fees from $1,108 to $2,000 over a four-year period. 

We think predatory pricing is unfair, and a contributing 

factor to some of these problems. When a retailer cannot pay his bills 

on a regular basis due to predatory pricing, I think in the end, all of 

us must pay. 

A contributing factor, as was stated earlier, to our 

predatory pricing, is the cost of a product. I don't think we can 

overemphasize that there is a need to establish exactly what a fair 

cost should be. When we are reviewing the idea of cost, we should 

consider what the minimum price should be when selling a product. 

Also, as was stated earlier, a critical point that w1ll help 

the consumer, I think is, to make permanent the idea of cooperative 

buying. This has a tendency, to some degree, of fair competition to 

those who are able to advertise heavily in the news media. 
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A question that you asked earlier about the sales to 

individuals under age, the present statute, I don't think is fair to 

the retailer. This is an area that I think and our group thinks that 

we should review to make it fair across the board. You have retailers 

who works very conscientiously to enforce the statute. But, if a 

mistake is made by an employee, inadvertently, he may have to be 

severely punished. At the same time, the consumer may use all types of 

phony ID 's in order to purchase products, and some of them look very 

official. I think those statutes should be reviewed. 

Another area that would possibly be of great value to both 

the consumer and the retailer is, to look at the possibility of having 

controlled tasting of products in the retail stores. At the present 

time, this is not allowed. We are confident that this Commission 

and we are very proud to see such a Commission formed -- will come up 

with a recommendation that will be in the interest of the consumer, as 

well as the industry as a whole. Thank you for allowing me to appear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much, Mr. Jarvis. Are 

there any questions from the Committee? (no response) We thank you 

very much for appearing. We want to thank everyone for taking the time 

out that they have to come before us. I believe we have one more 

gentleman who would like to speak. Would you come forward, sir? 

We on the Committee realize that you people are taking time 

away from your employment and away from your businesses to be able to 

present your views and to give us your suggestions. We do appreciate 

having you here today. Would you please give us your name and who you 

represent? 

S T E V E N W 0 H l: My name is Steven Wahl. My family has a 

retail liquor store in Newark. Although there were many things said 

today that I could comment on or take issue with, there are really two 

areas I would like to make statements about that are perpetuating 

certain attitudes that I don't think are accurate. 

There seems to be a wide use of certain terms, such as 

predatory pricinq. I haven't heard anybody say competitive pricing; 

you always hear lhe term predatory pricing. Also, the issue of 

temperance has been invoked for issues that w i 11 bolster certaw 

stores' financial benefits. 
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The issue of temperance seems to be an idea that is 

promulgated, that the only thing that affects temperance is people's 

reasonable use of alcoholic beverages, whether there are high prices or 

low prices. It seems to be said, that if somebody is advertising a low 

price, if somebody is discounting certain beverages, that everybody is 

going to run out and buy a lot of this, pour it into a garbaqe can and 

start feediny it to minors and everyone else. 

I believe, at the moment, we have a dipping consumption in 

this State. Other people here can correct me on that. There does seem 

to be a lot of advertising and discounting going on. 

To give a little perspective to what I am talking about, I 

think maybe the issue of temperance is really being avoided and is 

being used for other purposes. If you get a little perspective on 

other locations, either other states, such as Pennsylvania and Utah, 

and what their ideas of temperance are, or other countries to see what 

is going on there-- In Pennsylvania, they have a system where they 

have state stores, and they promote temperance by having very, very 

uncomfortable stores you go into, where people are almost treated as if 

they are going into methadone clinics. That was a statement made to me 

by people I know from Pennsylvania. I imagine that we in New Jersey 

could promote temperance by requiring that stores have that kind of 

attitude also. I don't know that that is the answer. 

In Utah, I believe they have severe restrictions on buying 

alcoholic drinks in restaurants. 

If you go into other countries, such as Italy or Greece, 

where the prices of wine and liquor are very, very inexpensive, I think 

you will see the abuse of alcohol and alcoholism are far lower than in 

the United States. So, what I am suggesting is, the problem lies in 

other things having to do with our culture, rather than somebody 

putting an ad in the newspaper for a discounted price. 

Another term that I have heard repeatedly is the term 

"predatory pricing," that everybody out there who is advertising is 

only in the business of putting people out of business. I take issue 

with that. 

I think the advertising and pricing that is going on is a 

fair type of system, which allows the public to be able to purchase 
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alcoholic beverages at fair prices, at discount prices, and sometimes, 

at bargain prices. I think the reason we hear the term predatory 

pricing so much is because we are going through a difficult period, 

where for many years, we have had people in a business where they have 

not had to act as merchants, and have not had to act as business people 

because their incomes were more or less guaranteed. You had a fixed 

price situation, where the public was more or less subsidizing any 

store that wished to have a license and go into business. So, I think 

these terms of "predatory pricing" and "temperance" are being used to 

mask these other problems. 

Am I correct on the consumption? 

is consumption somewhat down? 

MR. BROMLEY: It is up. 

MR. WOHL: How much is it up? 

MR. BROMLEY: It is up 3%. 

MR. WOHL: Three percent. Is that 

last year? 

MR. BROMLEY: The most immediate last 

Right now in New Jersey 

this month, or is that 

quarter. 

MR. WOHL: Another term I have heard used is, the statement, 

"This country is based on fair pricing for everyone, that is the 

American way." I seem to hear something else. That statement seems to 

say that fixed high prices are what this country is based on, rather 

than something resembling a fair or normal market where people have the 

ability to choose where they buy products based on the service, based 

on the price, and based on the selection. I also hear the term, "A 

stable market and an even market," which seems to be the same type of 

thing. I think there are other countries, such as countries where all 

the markets are controlled to be even, which are not democratic 

countries or capitalist countries where the government sets what it 

thinks are fair prices for everybody on all products. I don't know if 

that is the business the State wants to be in, either. 

I think what we have in a lot of these statements and a lot 

of the requests for controlling the market and the State, redefining 

costs, which interprets into fixing higher prices is, there are 

retailers who want the government to have the public subsidize their 

businesses, regardless of the business' viability, or their ability to 
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run their businesses well. I know many people who have retail stores 

who do not advertise, who take advantage of the cooperative buying 

capabilites, and who run very profitable, very good businesses. I know 

people who have taken advantage of advert t:lllliJ dlld ctlllpt:I'ul iv•: buyiiiiJ, 

who have done terrible, because they have ju:;l not don!) :;onw ,,,,mnum 

sense things in running a business well. It is unfortunate. It is 

unfortunate when you are changing a system so drastically, as we have 

done in deregulation, that we are going to have readjustments in the 

market. Not everybody is going to do well. But, I don't know whether 

or not the best solution is to try to readjust the market to subsidize 

every person in the marketplace, to have them make a high prof .it on 

whatever their business, regardless of the viability. 

I have heard retailers make statements that they are not 

happy about people traveling a half mile, a mile, or across a town line 

to purchase an item at a discounted price. I would question whether or 

not these people, in purchasing their other goods and their other 

services, go to stores with the highest prices or whether or not they 

walk around saying, "Are your prices really fair?" Or, do they look 

for prices that are good for them, and good for our serving the public 

and the public's interest? 

To sum it up, I think the marketplace with advertising, the 

ability to advertise, the ability to advertise price, is going to reach 

a balance where businesses are going to be able to make money and be 

able to survive. There are problems, but, I do not accept the premise 

that going back to a strict regulation and fixed high prices for the 

public is the answer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much, sir. Does anyone 

have any questions 'of Mr. Wahl? 

MR. FELDMAN: I have just a brief reference for your own 

information. The words "temperate sale" start with the law, where the 

Director is obligated by law to see that the sale of alcohol beverages 

is held in a temperate manner. If you review decisions of the Supreme 

Court from the very, very beginning of this industry, going back 

practically fifty years, you will find that they have defined 

temperance for the industry, the temperance sale. So, we are not 

governed by any self-serving definition; we are governed by the law, 
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implemented by the regulations, interpreted by the Supreme Court, and 

defined by the Supreme Court. So, in that sense, I would suggest you 

refer back to those decisions. I don't have them available with me, 

but you will find the whole history of what they define as a moderate 

and temperate sale of alcoholic beverages in the State. 

MR. WOHL: I was only suggesting that as everyone, including 

the courts, is trying to improve what they are doing, if fifty years 

ago the Supreme Court made certain decisions as to what was temperate, 

we find out that that isn't really what is happening. If three years 

ago, or f.ive years ago, it was thought that having high prices was 

going to stop fourth grade children from starting to drink, or earlier, 

or whatever was implied, we became a little more enlightened afterwards 

that there may be other things in our culture that affect temperance, 

truly affect temperance. We really adjusted to meet the problem. I 

don't think anybody here would have a problem with that. 

MR. FELDMAN: Well, the last decision was in the Degnan 

versus Heir Case in 1980, when they considered the validity of 

deregulation, not of the regs themselves, but of the concept of whether 

or not this was a practice which the Attorney General, and through him 

the Director of the Division, could undertake, and they defined in that 

decision what temperance sale was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: If there is no one else, we will allow 

the witness to step down. Oh, I'm sorry, excuse me, Mr. Bromley. 

MR. BROMLEY: I do not think we understand Mr. Wahl, because 

I think the answers, and the questions asked by the Vice Chairman lead 

one to believe that Mr. Wahl just doesn't understand what temperance 

is. I think what Mr. Wahl is saying to us is, that in his opinion, 

temperance is a concept that has no meaning in 1983, and is outdated. 

Am I correct? 

MR. WOHL: Well, I'm not really sure what you are implying 

there. What I was saying, to reiterate it, is, if the boldest 

temperance is to try to assure that in our society people are going to 

be healthy people, who are aware that we are not promoting a large 

munlwr of people to hecome alcoholics, or something like that, the lJOdl 

is to do things in our society that are going to promote healthy 

activity among people. What I was questioning was the implication made 
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that temperance in our society is simply a matter of ra1s1ng prices or 

lowering prices. My statement referring to other parts of the country 

or other parts of the world, was that the price of alcoholic beverages 

does not seem to be the main thing that creates alcoholics or abuse of 

alcoholic beverages. 

MR. BROMLEY: Temperance is more than just a question of 

alcoholism, though. Apparently, temperance is a phrase that means 

someone shouldn't drink too much. It applies particularly to alcohol, 

doesn't it? 

MR. WOHL: Do you feel that you are going to cut down 

the abuse of alcohol severely which would lead to alcoholism, or do you 

feel severe abuse of alcohol is directly and strictly a result of what 

the price is, whether or not it is advertised, or whether people are 

allowed to take advantage of reasonable prices on alcoholic beverages? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Excuse me, but, I don't really feel 

that any member of the Committee at this point in time would be able to 

express a position or condition of position with reference to that 

question or any other question. The purpose of this meeting is to be 

able to acquire, and have presented to us, as much informal ion as 

possible, so that in our deliberation, we will be able to reach the 

type of conclusions similar to the question that you have just asked. 

That is something I am sure the Committee as a whole will address when 

we meet in Executive Session. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Chairman, could I ask one following 

question? I am at a loss to understand the testimony of Mr. Wahl on 

predatory pricing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Well, we have it on tape, and I am sure 

you will be able to review it in full, if you feel you would like to 

reiterate in any particular area. Mr. Wahl has given testimony that is 

definitely on tape and will be presented to you if you would like to 

read it further. In the interest of giving an opportunity to one more 

person who has come before us, I would like to say that we might be 

able to continue the discussion and questioning of Mr. Wahl after we 

hear from the next witness. This will be the last witness, and then we 

can get back to Mr. Wahl so the others can leave, if that is all right 

with you. Would you please stay around, Mr. Wahl, until after we hear 

from the next witness? 
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MR. WOHL: I will stay around, yes. Fine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: I would appreciate that. Thank you 

very much. This will be the final person that we will take testimony 

from. However, we will go back to Mr. Wahl for the benefit of any 

members of the Committee, after we have called for a closing statement. 

S A M U E l W R I G H T: I am very pleased that this session is 

going on today. I have been in this business ever since day one. I 

even helped my dad make home brew. My name is Sam Wright, Wright's 

Liquor Store in Malaga. Everything that has been on the floor so far I 

am interested in, but, I want to stress one point. I spent a whole 

lifetime in the business of alcoholic beverages. I have two children 

who are involved in it, and I would like you fellows to do some of the 

things necessary to keep it so they will still have a business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: That was a very short statement, thank 

you. I am sure it had a lot of impact, though. 

Before we get back to Mr. Wahl, I am going to allow the 

members of the Committee to make any type of statement they might like 

to with reference to closing this hearing. Prior to that, I will 

inform those who are in attendance that our next, and what I consider 

will be the last public hearing of this Subcommittee, will be held on 

September 16, 1983 in Atlantic City. We will be addressing the liquor 

industry's trade practices of regulations and such with the casino 

industry, how they could adversely affect the Casino Control Commission 

and the ABC. So, while we feel we have a confliction in those two 

areas, we are going to try to address that through this Trade Practices 

Subcommittee meeting in Atlantic City on the 16th. It will start 

promptly at 10 a.m. The Committee members will be informed as to the 

location. 

Now, I will start from my left to see whether or not anyone 

has, at this point in time, any closing remarks. Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAFFREY: I have none. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Napodano? 

MR. NAPODANO: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. I have just 

two very short things. I want to just put some things on the record so 

there is no misunderstanding of a lot of what was said here this 

morning. It should be noted that all Shop Rite Liquor Store owners do 
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not own supermarkets. It should also be noted that all Shop RiLe 

Liquor Stores are not contiguous to Shop Rite Supermarkets. That is 

just for clarification. 

The other thing, Mr. Chairman, is, I would hope that at some 

future time, or at your next meeting, you will permit representatives 

of the buying or advertising cooperatives, if you will, and 

representatives of the newspapers, to appear before your Subcommittee, 

and perhaps present the other side of the testimony that we have heard 

this morning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Mr. Napodano, you have brought up a 

very good point. I do feel that it should be addressed. Rather than 

encompass it in the next meeting, I would prefer to have a separate 

hearing involving ourselves in just that, the co-op buying, the type of 

situations that would be established, and the newspaper people. I 

would say that could be done, and we could hold that right in Trenton, 

so we could address that part of the industry. Mr. McCaffrey? 

MR. McCAFFREY: This meeting was not specifically for the "D" 

licensees. Were there "C" licensees invited? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: No, it was not specifically-- Yes. The 

representatives that deal with the industry under the "C" licenses were 

informed of the meeting, the time and the place, and we did ask them to 

inform their members. I know we have had no one here from the "C" 

license group, but evidentally, there seems to be no problem in that 

area. Mr. Farrell? 

MR. FARRELL: I have nothing, except to say that I think the 

hearing in Atlantic City should also allow people to testify who happen 

to live in South Jersey, who want to talk about things other than 

casino-related matters. It would be very convenient for them. I don't 

think we should limit it to the casino industry if there are people 

down there who want to address the kind of topics that we heard today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Maybe we should go further, then. 

Are there any thoughts of restricting it to just the casinos, or 

is it this Committee's wish that we open the next hearing to be held in 

Atlantic City to address all areas? Mr. Director? 

MR. VASSALLO: I would suggest, since it is going to be in 

Atlantic City, that it go a little bit beyond just the casinos, becsuse 
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there are a number of trade practices occurring in the Atlantic City 

area which seem not to be occurring in other parts of the State. A lot 

of promotions occur in the Atlantic City area which go beyond those 

that occur in other parts of the State. Perhaps it might be very 

appropriate for this to be addressed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Do I hear any objection to having this 

next hearing open to all with trade practices involving the industry? 

(no response) Well, with no objection, I will ask the secretary to 

please inform all the groups, once again, of the upcoming Committee 

meeting in Atlantic City. We will be addressing trade practices in 

general for the industry, and that should cover everybody. At that 

point in time, maybe we could also inform the newspapers and the buying 

cooperative groups to give us testimony also. Mr. Feldman? 

MR. FELDMAN: Nothing further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: All right. If there is nothing 

further, we wi 11 go back to Mr. Wahl to finish off any discussions Mr. 

Bromley might have with him. Of course, we will have no further 

witnesses appear before us today. Thank you for your indulgence, Mr. 

Wahl. 

MR. BROMLEY: Mr. Wahl, the definition of predatory pricing, 

which I think was used most generally today, is the definition that 

says, "· •• the sale of alcoholic beverages at unreasonably low prices 

for the purpose of destroying competition or eliminating a competitor." 

My question to you is, is that the sense you were using in the term 

predatory pricing, and do you speak in favor of predatory pricing or 

in opposition to it? 

MR. WOHL: My disagreement is relates to what predatory 

pricing is. I have heard just about everybody who used the phrase 

today throw out the phrase predatory pricing, using it synonymously 

with any advertising or any discount pricing. I know there are people 

advertising high prices. If you look at the ads, there are people who 

are advertising high prices. Nobody has mentioned that. The only 

thing I hear from anyone's mouth is predatory pricing. I believe that 

the overuse of that word is trying to perpetuate the idea that any 

discounting or any advertising is predatory. 
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As I stated before, I believe the history in New Jersey shows 

that the pricing that has gone on is not predatory. If you compare New 

Jersey, I believe -- I don't have all of the facts right here -- with 

other states, such as New York, where when they have had changes in 

their regulations, they have had very large percentages of their 

retailers drop out of the business very quickly. I am talking about 

figures of 20%, 30% of the stores going out of business in New York 

City over a one, two, or three year period. Compared with that, from 

what was predicted, from what I have heard predicted after 

deregulation, there has been nothing anywhere close to that type of 

thing. Also, I know what our own attitudes -- my attitude and my 

family's attitudes -- in running our store and in merchandizing are. 

We are not looking to put anybody out of business; we are looking to do 

what everyone else is doing, to make a living, to try to upgrade a 

business well, to try to serve the public, and to provide the public 

with good service and fair and reasonable pricing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Are there any other questions? 

MR. GARRITY: As I understand it, you make a very good case 

for (inaudible) in the alcoholic beverage retailing business. 

Apparently, you do not fear competition and you do not agree with the 

meaning of the term, predatory pricing as used here. 

MR. WOHL: Some of its use. You would have to be specific on 

what you are saying. Fear competition and predatory pricing? If a 

company were allowed to come in and give away their goods for two 

months, that would be predatory pricing, because there is no 

justification for that other than putting other businesses out of 

business. What I said was, I think what the history of New Jersey has 

shown is, that that hasn't been the case, and very largely, the 

pricing that has gone on and the advertising that has gone, on have not 

been predatory, as witnessed by what has happened in the marketplace. 

MR. GARRITY: May I ask you what area of Essex County your 

business is in? 

MR. WOHL: I have stores in Newark. 

MR. GARRITY: In Newark? 

MR. WOHL: Yes. 

MR. GARRITY: Are you a member of a cooperative buying or 

advertising group? 
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MR. WOHL: Yes. I am a member of the Shoppers' World of 

Liquor, which is a cooperative advertistng group. I am also a member 

of a cooperative purchasing group. 

MR. GARRITY: Are you a member of any retailers association? 

MR. WOHL: We have been at various times. At the moment, I 

don't believe we are. 

MR. GARRITY: Are you a member of the New Jersey Package 

Stores' Association? 

MR. WOHL: No, I am not. 

MR. GARRITY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARKERT: Thank you very much. I certainly, once 

again, appreciate everyone being here. We will formally close this 

Subcommittee meeting, and we will meet on September 16th. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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1 • 51863, sponsored by 
Stockman, Hirkala, 
special p e rr.1 i t s to 
beverages and wine 

......... ................ .. ........ 
51863 Fact Sheet 

Senators Russo, Difrancesco, Foran, Caufield, 
Cardinale, and Paolella, i s an act concerning 
a I I ow bonafide restaurants to serve r.~alt alcohol 
by the elass. (,..\men ct in g P.L. 1 9 3 9, c.173). 

i c 

2. The governing 
beer and wine 

body of 
permits 

a municipality shal I authorize the 
for that ~nunicipality by ordinance. 

issuance of 
(Home f!ule) 

individual bonafide 3 • r J o be r r an d w i n e p c r r~1 I t may be I s s u e J t o 
restaurants unless prior authorization is 
of the municipality. 

given by the governing body 

4. S 1 B 6 3 a I I o ws those res tau rants hoI d i n g per r.1 i t s to serve rna I t a I coho I i c 
beverages and wine, in glasses, by restaurant personnel providing table 
service to seated patrons for consur.~ption only with meals. 

5. Hours of service of beer and wine shal I be fron 11:00 All TO 11:00 Pt1 
each opera t i n g day a I I owed by 1.1u n I c i p a I or d i nan c e • 

6. Permit holders may only serve malt alcoholic beverages and wine in 
glasses. 

7. Fast food establishments will~ be elibitde for a special permit. 

8 • The s p e c i a I p e r r:1 i t f e e s h a I I be c or.1 p a r a b I e t o ex i s t i n g m u n i c i p a I 
I icense renewable fees, with a like amount going back to the 
municipality for enforcement. (up to $2,000.00) 

9. An additional $500.00 fee to the State will be earnarked as follows: 

a. $250.00 to the Division of Alcoholic Beverar,e Control for the 
purpose of adninistering this act. 

b. ~:;so.oo to the State of ~lew Jersey Ccneral Fund. 

1 0 • r u t1 I i c r c f e r e n d u m i s r e fJ u i r e d f o r d r y c o r. 11 1 u n i t i e s t o a p p r o v e t h e 
i s s u J n c e o f s p e c i a I p e r c1 i t s • 

1 1 • ;, r e s t a u r .t n t ", u s t 
pri1,1arily serve a 
dessert). 

h.tve 
f u I I 

a filinlr.lUf:l table seating 
course meal (appetizer, 

capacity of 50 and 
soup, salad, entree, 

12. 1-~unicipal restrictions shall be Imposed upon restaurants. 

and 

13. Application for permits will be the same as for plenary retai 
holders in 33:1~25. 

icense 

1 4. Each municipality wherein the 
allowed shall be restricted in 

issuance of 
the number 

issued by special ropulation criteria. 

beer and wine permits 
of per1nits which shall 
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a 

liiarU8al llill8 
IIUliturant assocaauoo 

tor 
Dt~t~r and Wlatl 

LIQUOR LICENSE HOLDER 

SIGNIFICANT DIFF~RENCE~ BETW~EN 

PBHMIT HOLDER 

Flexible hours based en nunicipal 
oM.inanoes 

Restricted hours governed by State Statute 
(11:00 A.M. to 11:00 P.M.) 

------------------------------------
Any type of alcot¥:>1 may be aerved by · 
glass or bottle 

Only draft beer and wine by tbe glass 

--------------------------------------~ 
May have bar or lounge 

Any type of alcohol may be (..'OilSI.IInl.'<.l at 
anytime wi t.hout a meal 

A broad selectioo of alcohol may be 
consumed en premises 

Mixed drinks have a higher profit mary in 
than beer and wine 

No bar or lounge allowed 

~r and wine with a meal ooly -
Only draft lx.!er and wine by tbe glass 
may ~urned 

No mixed drinks -- only beer and wine 

-----------------------~----------------
O«ns license and has right to transfer 
it and to sell it 

i'ackaged ~ can bt! sold .tor off-prt.illlSt:! 
calsumption 

Licensees are primarily in the liquor 
b.lsiness aaJ/or liquor-food business 

Regular daily/nightly customers 

lXX!s not ONn a 1 icen~:>c - cannot transfer 
or se 11 penni t 

No sale of packagt:!d 90Qds 

Permit holde:..:.: only in the food business 

Regular custaners - bNo to four times 
per Dalth 

--------------------------------·-------
Banquet privileges already granted 

Lict!llsE:!es serving fOOLi may provide drinks 
to wai tiny patrons 

1305 ML HOIIU ld. • suruno?.if, 

Must receive special penni.t to provide 
alcohol for banquet functions 

Drinks may not bi! SE:!rved other than with 
meal 



ECONOMIC IMPACT 
2,000 Restaurants 2,500 Restaurants 

New Jobs Created by S 1863 
4,000 new jobs x $3.75 hrly /wage 5,000 new jobs x $3.75 hrly /wage 

x 25 hrs/wk x 26 wks/yr = x 25 hrs/wk x 26 wks/yr = 
$9, 7~000.00 $12,187,500.00 

yearly increase by S1863/A1969 yearly increase by S1863/A1969· 

Expanded Hours 
2.000 restaurants x $3.75 hr /wage 2,500 restaurants x $3.75 hr /wage 
x 20 average H employees x 8 x 20 average # employees x 8 

expanded hours x 26 wks = expanded hrs x ·26 wks = 
$31 ,200,000 $39,000,000 

increase in gross pay for expanded hours 

Construction Costs 
128 sq. ft. increase x $65.00 128 sq. ft. increase x $65.00 

per sq. ft x 2,000 restaurants = per sq. ft. x 2,500 restaurants = 
$16,640,000 $20,800.000 

Equipment 
Beer Mizers 

$2,000/mizer x 2.000 restaurant $2,000/mizer x 2,500 restaurants 
$4,000.000 $5,000,000 

W ina Coolers 
$2, 100/coolerx 1.000 restaurants $2, 100/cooler x 1,250 restaurants 

$2, 1 00,000 $2,625,1100 
Beer Pitchers 

$3.00/pitcher x 48 tables $3.00/pitcher x 48 tables 
$288,000 $360,000 

Glassware 
150 glasses x $.75/glass Wine 150 glasses x $ J.S /glass 

$22~000 $281.250 

150 glasses >< $1.00/glass Beer 150 glasses x $1.00/glass 
$300,000 

7x S375.000 



'Wedaeeday. ~ptrmlwr 24, 1910 

ials_--~....;__· ------
17"=::::.::. l.::·Q:t._Sl rid y_ls_ Mandate._. · 

A ltUdy completed by the Bure~~u or Buaincu ud. ~· · 
Eoooomic Re.eurc.b at the Uruventty of New WelD· I 
co oa tbe impecu or New MelUco's Uquor.licenailll 

, la-.e lboWd IUVe •• an HTUI..Itlble IDMidate for =':d aapuina leglllatol"'' &o chanae the 

The UNM study ia ll1Rlf1cant and conduMvr not 
because of lts voluminous .:onrrnt. 1ts det11l. nor 111 
an)· aew fa~;ts it brought to hahl Most 01 ttl pe.r1A· . 
neat facta bave been sUited repe~ted!y. 111 the prua 1 
or oo the platform, 111 ~ent yeaN. 

\\'bat ia s•amficanr 11 that an u.pcr~ •nd 
rrape<"tN rt~uch orramzat10n hu approached the 
task of u~mbhna and ,J(..:umenun, t~ fact!! 1n a 
diS(IIISSIOMte WI)' and ba) come Up With tvlckDU 

. tublt.aotiatiJ\a the poaitiona o( I hoM wbo· have Jol'll 
been cryme out - but unh«~ -· for !Jquor law 
rrform 

The !"rlt'an:h ream·~ fmd•n111 that tbe lu&h·pn.:t'd 
quoUI llunac. are re~otn~·•mll tlw 11ate'1 e-cononuc 
development. pushma small anJ lllOderare-K.-.Ie 
buSIDCtlmen out of tbe hqunr bullMit and. puftUII 
the Ucensea almost ucluii\'C'l)· 10 !be hands o( b11· 
money an&1 out-()( state mteresu si\Quld convince 
lawmakers that rdurm can nu kmger ~ postpop<'d 

But prompt rl'form ~~ rendl'rn.l even morr 1m~r 
anv~ by the ra{·t that 1~ aate anvem!'Mnl, 111\ldlt<l 
by law wuh the res!VIls•l>alll)' u( JX•hcmi rtw IIQuur 
10dustry and enforClnl the law. rups only nC'!j!hll 
ble benrfus from the monopoties ''' o~n law crt· 
lit I 

Sli!RlfiC4lntl)', t~ l:NM ~1u1h liucre~!lh' ltl'Cn. 
dt.al' of rrrommrndi.ngan~· b~1ric 5olutiunror the. 
prublem althou11h 11 t~plorea.t numbt-r of apprwu:h 
~ employlld 1n ~ber a.Uitl'& 

-
It suffl,tS that !he ~rudy tll.JIIIil!tn 11. ~UlllJllltnicnt 

frum e\'ery mt."mbt'r of the L•·t~•~l..eturr 1ndud1fti 
tl~<lM' who wall bt' l'lectcd t .. them f1r»t tcrllll Ill 
:"oYembt'r. to :~tn\·e for nlNmnrtul chanfra In an 
111-roncl'IVN lav. th.tl ha~ t:rnwn mto. II drudful 
rrankrn~te10 -~ JUIIUI't: uf !hUH' ch.OjjC'~ (4111 ~i.l 
l'lt .jtVIS«l 111 !he rrel' an•l u\\t'fl 11\tft't~ UIAt 

• lr(lll.,latlvt' di><'U''""' :~nd Jd'Mir n! f(>l J 

,., __ 
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THE LAW 

Are you responsible for the drunlc driver? 
James E. Peters is an educator and 
consultant for hotels, restaurants 
~£nd bars. A graduate of the Hotel, 
Restaurant and Travel Administra
tion program at the University of 
Massachusetts in Amherst, he has 
15 years expel"ience in the industry 
and presently teaches courses at 
the University of Massachusetts 
titled "Ba1·tencling-More Than 
Mixing Drinks" and "Employee 
Development in the Hospitality 
Industry." 

With his background in the 
hospitality industry and the alco
holism t1·eatment industry, he 
hopes to form a national network of 
those interested in cooperating in 
developing training programs for 
dispensers of alcohol. A conference 
is planned for this summer. Jib1· 
further information, write to P.O. 
Box 165, Amherst, Mass. 01004, or 
call (413)323-6076. 

President Reagan began 1983 by 
calling on Americans to remove the 
drunk driver from the roads. Many 
groups are becoming involved. The 
alcoholic beverage industry and the 
alcoholism treatment industry, two 
groups generally considered adver
saries, now have the responsibility 
to work cooperatively in making the 
highways safer. Education is the 
greatest force operating today to 
change the attitude of the public 
about drinking and driving .. Estab
lishing a communication network 
between these two groups will 
allow the exehange of valuable 
information, which then can be 
hrouglit to the mi:-~informed and 
confused public. 

Each year, more than 25,000 
people dit! in alcohol-related auto
mobile accidents; an additional 1.5 
million are injured. The cost of 
drunk-driving accidents amounts 
to more than $24 billion every year 
in property damage, loss of wages 
and medical and legal fees. The 
emotional costs to the victim's 
family and friends are incalculable. 

1\Ccjdeqts. These suits claim that 
"contnbutory negligence" exists 
when an alcohol dispense1· contin
ues to serve an already intoxicated 
person or provides alcohol to a 
minor. 

Twenty years ago, lawsuits of 
this type were rare and generally 
unsuccessful. In 1959, the ice was 
broken: A tavern in New Jersey was 
found negligent for injuries to a 
person caused by a minor served by 
the tavern. In this case, the injuries 
were a "foreseeabl.e consequence" 
of the furnishing of the alcoholic 
beverages. 

The alcohol dispenser's responsi
bility of monitol'ing customer 
drinking has existed for centUJ·ies. 
According to folklore, th(' expres-

sion "mind one's p's and q's," 
meaning be careful of one's words 
and actions, grew out of a system 
used in English public houses and 
pubs. Ale was served in either pint 
or quart containers and the inn
keeper kept track by marking on a 
board the number of p's and q's the 
customer drank. The innkeeper 
who minded his p's and q's never 
lost money; the customer who did 
the same was never overcharged or 
never got drunk. 

Today, courts are using Blood 
Alcohol Content (BAC) levels as the 
criteria for determining intoxica
tion. BAC is the percentage of 
al<·ohol in a person's blood and 
represents the number of drinks a 
person consumed. A BAC of 0.10%, 

l'roll/oting a bur aM 11 sol'in/ t'll'l'll'<llllllenf c:an heiJ• disco1u·nge drunk driving. 

RESTAURANTS & iNSTITUTIONS/70-1 
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Programs must be instituted to minimize the 
possibility of a third-party liability suit. 

considered legal intoxication in 
most states, means one-tenth of one 
percent, or one-thousandth of the 
person's total body fluid. The 
greater the volume of body fluid or 
weight, the more alcohol is needed 
to reach a 0.10% BAC. 

BAC, being more objective, has 
been used in research and substan
tial evidence shows a person's 
driving ability is affected seriously 
at 0.10%. The person has a seven 
times greater risk of being involved 
in an automobile accident; at 0.15% 
BAC, the person is 25 times as likely 
to be involved in an accident than 
someone who has not been drink
ing. The average BAC of individuals 
arrested for drunk driving is 
0.175%. 

How many drinks does it take for 
a person to reach these various 
BACs'! Although many factors 
affect BAC, the most significant are 
body weight, sex, if the person has 
eaten or not and the rate at which a 
person drinks. Tabel 1 shows the 
number of drinks a person needs to 
reach various BACs in two hours. 
Acc01·ding to the table, a significant 
amount is needed to reach a high 
BAC. The 150-lb. drinker needs 
five drinks in two hours to reach 
the point of legal intoxication; this 
is a drink about every 25 minutes. 
The same individual would need 
nine drinks or a drink every 13 
minutes to reach a BAC of 0.1751!1o. 
This clearly is not a typical social 
drinker or a typical customer. 

Because lawsuits against taverns 
are civil suits rather than criminal, 
a defendant needs only to show that 
he exercised "reasonable care" to 
prevent a person from becoming 
intoxicated and driving. Besides 
monitoring the number of drinks, 
the responsible establishment 
could develop other policies that 
would demonstrate "reasonable 
care" in preventing alcohol-related 
problems. 

Suggested policies could include: 
-Provide alcohol education to 

employees. Many people working in 
a job where they dispense alcohol 
are unaware of the potential 
dangers of alcohol abuse and their 
legal responsiblities when dispens
ing it. Massachusetts, North Caroli
na, New Jersey, Minnesota and 
New York are states that are 
consideri: g legislation requiring 

711-J/ APPi'l , 1'lS:l 

training of alcohol dispensers. 
-Promote alternative activities 

to encourage socializing. Because 
most people go to bars to socialize, 
encouraging this socializing could 
increase the volume of business. 

ealin foods and 

BLOOD ALCOHOL CONTENT 
(1MgJ100MI.t 

Number of drinks in Body Weight• 
two hours 100 lb. 1~0 lb. 200 lb. 
2 1-oz. 100-pr. spirits 0.040% 0.02~% 0.019% 
2 4-oz. glasses wine 
2 12-oz. glasses beer 

~ 1-oz. 100-pr. spirits 
~ 4-oz. glasses wine 
~ 12-oz. glasses beer 0.1~0% 0.100% 0.070% 

9 1-oz. 100-pr. spirits 
9 4-oz. glasses wine 
9 12-oz. glasses beer 0.260% 0.17~% 0.130% 

Note: The amount ol absolute alcohol is the same 
In a 1-oz. shot ol spirits, a 4-oz. glus ol wine and a 
12-oz. glass ol beer. The amount olllquld In each 
is different, but the amount ol alcohol is the 
same-'h oz. per drink. 

• •These ligures are lor males. SACs for females 
would be higher by approximately 0.025%. 

alcoholic beverages. Be creative 
and imaginative-:Ja% of the adults 
in the United States do not drink 
alcohol, while another 33% are light 
or moderate drinkers who choose 
not to drink on some occasions. 
Training employees to respect the 
customer's right of choice and 
having appealing (yet still profit
able) non-alcoholic alternatives will 
not reduce your clientele, but 
ratlwt· will increase it. Employees 
sometimes act as pushers, intimi
dating customers to buy alc~ohol. 
This not only is rude, but bad 
buMiness. 

-Do not allow more than one 
drink at "last call." Have fond and 
coffee avail.able at the end of the 

lOx 
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night. It will not sober up the 
person, but it encourages the 
person to wait before driving. 
Offering a Happy Hour discounting 
non-alcoholic beverages one hour 
before closing also will give the 
p!.!t'son time to think about driving 
or finding another way home. Have 
alternative transportation avail
able-and promote it. 

-Mf.!asure drinks, do not pour 
freely. Many people count their 
drinks. Pouring more than an oz. of 
spirits or four oz. of wine gives the 
person more than they think they 
are getting-and could lead to an 
arrest or acc:ident. Giving extra is 
not doing anyone a favor. Besides, it 
increases costs. A person can have 
six ·four-oz. glasses of wine in two 
hours before reaching 0.10% BAC; 
the same person only can have four 
six-oz. glasses of wine to reach the 
same BAC. You can be responsible 
and still sell more drinks by being 
accurate in your measure! 

-Finally, strict rules must be 
enforced concerning drinking on 
the job and after work by employ
ees. Alcoholism is an occupational 
hazard in the alcoholic beverage 
industry. Do not be responsible for 
promoting unhealthy drinking pat
terns in your staff and manage
ment. An employee with a drinking 
problem costs you money-absen
teeism, lateness, waste, customer 
complaints, turnover, etc. Also, a 
problem drinking employee can 
enable a problem drinking custom
er to drink-usually at the expense 
of the establishment. Provide alco
hol t•ducntion and make Employee 
As11i11tance Program!! (I<~APs) avail
able to all employees. Every dollar 
invested in an EAP returns $5 in 
savings. 

The alcohol abuser is bad busi
ness. Not only does the person 
increase your liability, but also 
turns other customers away. Both 
the alcoholic beverage industry and 
the alcoholism treatment industry 
have the common goal of prevent
ing alcohol abuse. Now is the time 
that these two groups combine 
resources to address the drunken 
driver problem and alcoholism. In 
joining efforts and promoting safe, 
responsible drinking, these two 
industries will fulfill their social 
responsibility by creating safer 
highways and saving· lives. 0 
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SE!\ATE Cml!-!ITTEE SUBSTITIJTE 

FOR 

SEl\ATE BILL. NO. 1863 

An Act authc~izing the issuance of beer/wine 

;er~its to restaurants for the serving of malt alcoholic 

beverages and vline by the glass under certain circ~~stances, 

anc supple~enting Title 33 of the Revisec Statutes. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Se~ate and Gen.ral Asse~bly 

of the State of New Jersey: 

1. The Director of the Division of Alcoholic 

Beverage Control is authorized to promulgate Fegu~~tions 
• • as nere~nafter defined 
a,,;: iE:s·1.1e annual sp'ecial permits to restaurants,/for the 

purpose of allO\.;ing the permit holder to serve its customers 

beer, other malt alcoholic beverages and wine by the glass. 

This special permit shall be known as a beer/wine permit. 

2. a. No beer/wine permit shall be issued to indi-

vidual bona fide rest-urants for use in a restaurant located 

in a municipality in which alcoholic beverages are not 

authorized to be sold at retail. The issuance of a beer/ 

wine permit shall be allowed if authorized by the residents 

of the municipality at a public referendum conducted for 

that purpose. . . 

b. No.beer/wine permit shall be issued to a par-

ticular restaurant by the director unless prior authorization 

is given by resolution of the governing body or authorized 

isuing authority of the municipality wherein the restaurant 

applying for the permit is located. 

c. No beer/wine permits shall be issued in a muni

cipality in which alcoholic beverages are authorized to be sold 

at retail, unless the governing body of the municipality holds 

a public hearing on the question of whether beer/wine permits 

shall be issued in the municipality and then passes an ordinance 

stating that beer/wine permits are permitted in t~e municipality. 

llx 
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3. a. The director shall issue beer/wine permits pur

s~ant to ~he procedures a~d req~ire~e~ts established for 

plenary retai+ consumption licenses in R.S. 33:1-25, and 

the regulations promulgated p~rsuant thereto. 

b. At the request o: the municipal qoverni~g 

~cdy, the director shall'i~pose upon restaurants within 

the municipality seeking or holding beer/wine permits the 

same conditions that may be imposed by the State and the 

,o:Junicipality on liceJ1Sesissued under R.S. 33:1-12. 

4. a .. A beer/wine permit may be issued only for 

use by restaurants·that primarily serve a full course 

meal consisting of appetizer, soup, salad, entree and 

des.sert; and that have a rr.inirr.'-L"n seating capacity of 50 

persons; and that are operated and conducted by the permit 

holder as a bona fide restaurant as further defined in 

R.S. 31:1-1. The seating capacity requirement imposed by 

this subsection may be waived by the governing body or authorized 

issuing authority on application of the person seeking the permit, 

providing the restaurant is a bona fide restaurant and meets all 

other criteria established in this act. 

b. If the governing body or authorized issuing 

authority of a_DY municipality in which alcoholic beverages are 

permitted to be sold at retail does not approve ,the issuance by 

the director of a special permit for a particular restaurant, 

the applicant may appeal to the director. 

c. Fast food establishments, that is establish

ments primarily selling limited lines of refreshments and 

prepared food for consumption either on or near the premises 

or for ta~e ho~e consu~ption, shall net be eligible for 

l2x 
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5~ 3eer/~ine per~it hcl~ers may sell, serve and 

~eli~er a~y ~raft salt alcoholic beverages, 5er~ented wine, 
i 

~reated K:ne, ble~ded ~ine, fortified and sparkling wine 

~~· t:-~e g2.=sc, :c= CC:1S:..:.."':"i;:tic:; \·:.:.t:: a r:-.cal, that is an e:--~tree 

cr main ite~ listed on a:lunch cr dinner menu, on the 

;remises ~cr which the p•rrnit has been issue~, to patrons 

seated a~ a ta~le. The ~alt alcoholic beverage or wine 

shall be served by resta~rant personnel pr6viding table 

service. ~The hours during \,·hich the sale, service and 

delivery of malt alcoholic beverages and wine are per-

.. :::itted are from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. each operating 

cay, proviged such sale, service or delivery is not 

otherwise prohibited to licensees under R.S. 33:1-12 et 

seq. 

' 
The beer/wine permit holder shall post a sign 

or signs on the prernises~at locations plainly visible 

to the patrons, stating that beer and wine are permitted 

to be served by the glasf, with a meal, to patrons seated 

at tables, between the hOurs of 11:00 a.m. amll:OO p.m. 

each operating day. 

6. A beer/wine pt;!rmi t holder ·\.,ho serves wine 

shall offer on the menu to patrons of the restaurant at 

least one wine produced by a winery licensed in the State 

pursuant to.subsect~ons ?a. to 2b. of R.S. 33:1-10. 

7. Nothing in this act shall be construed so as to 
\ \ 

prohibit a person who, for the purpose of holding a private 

function, rents a nonpublic portion of a restaurant that 

holds a beer/wine permit, from bringing into the nonpublic 

portion of the restaurant for consumption thereon, malt al-

coholic beverages other than diaft be~r, fermented wine, 

treated ~ine, blended wi~e, fcrti~ied or sparkling wine. 

13x 
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f=o~ place to place or from person to person. Khen a 

res~au=ant relin~uishes a per~it for any reason, the permit 
··--- --- ----- -------------

shall be returned to the ~~nicipality for reiss~ance. 

9. Each mu~ici;ality ~herein the issuance of beer/ 

wine permits is otherwise allowed,. shall be restricted in 

the nu.rnber of beer/v.'ine permits which may be. issued according 

to the following population criteria as determined by the last 

?receding f~deral census. 

a. Three beer/wine permits up to a population 

of 5,000 residents; 

b. One beer/wine permit for every 3,000 resi-
up to a population of 23,000 residents 

dents in excess of the original S,OOO;for a maximum of six 

additional beer/wine permits; 

c. In addition to permits allowed pursuant to 

subsections a. and b., one beer/wine permit for every 

10,000 residents in excess of a total population of 23,000 

residents; 

d. Notwithstandin~ the foregoing, any municipality 

bordering the Atlantic Ocean or any tidal bay thereof in 

counties of the fifth or sixth class may authorize the di-

rector to issue up to 25 beer/wine permits. This subsection 

shall not apply to municipalities wherein casino gambling 

is allowed by law. 
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10 • .; ~e<:::::/1->'ine pe::.-rr.i t holder shall pay the follc·,...-

ing fees fc::: the iss~ance and renewal of a permit: 

a. ~~ a~nual fee to the ~unicipality in the 

same amount as the fee imposed by the municipality for the 

issua!"lce and rene· ... •al of a plenary retail ccnsu;nption li

cense, c,... i.:: plenary retail consu.-nption licenses are not 

issued \·:ithin the·muni'cipality but authorized by referendu."TT 

heretofore notec, then such fee as the ~unicipality sets 

by ordinance. If an application is denied, 90% of the fee 

shall be returned to the applicant . 

.. b. :P.n annual fee of $500. DO to the State,. 90% 

of which shall be returned to the applicant if the appli

cation is denied, which fee shall be disbursed 50% to the 

Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control for the pu:::pose of 

administering this act; and 50% to the General Fund. 

11. A restaurant holdinq a beer/wine permit shall show 

the sale of food to be at least 80% of the restaurant's 

yearly gross receipts. 

12. This act shall take effect immediately, but shall 

remaining inoperative until the 90th day following its 

enactment. 
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JOSEPH MILZA 

MR. LHAIK~AN, MI::MUERS uF THE STUUY CUMNI~SION, MY NAME I~ JOSEPH MIL~A 

ANU 1 AM PKESlUENT OF ~.N. ~£NAULT WlNtkY IN EGG HA~BOR. uUK WINERY 

HAS BEEN IN EXl~TI:.NCE !:ilNCE ltio4. LJLlRlNb THE l~!>u ·~. WE t;:,VE HAIJ THE 

HONOK OF ~EING THE LEA~ING UOMESTIC CHAM~AlbNE PKOUUCER IN THE 

COUNTRY. UU~ BLUEUE~KY CHAMPAbNE IS STILL NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED. 

THE NEW JERSEY WINE I~DUSTRY OF WHI~H MY WINEKY IS THE LEAOING 

P~OUUCER IN THE STATI:., HAS ~OUNIJ ITSELF IN A PRE~ARIOUS PuSITION. IN 

SPITE OF THE NUNEROUS AWAkUS OUR VITNERS HAVE RECEIVED OVER THE YEARS 

F 0 t\ E XC t L L EN C E 0 F P R (J U U C T , 0 U t< i'iA k I( t. T !>HARE HAS C 0 IH I N U E D T 0 D I N I id S H • 

AS LATE AS 1Y7b, THE Nl~ JERSEY WINE INUUSTKY RANKEU FOURTH (4TH) IN 

UONI:.STit; PROUUCTlON, TUUAY WE ARE NINTH. THE hAR.<.ET SHARE IN NEW 

JERSEY BY OUR IN~USTRY lS T~REATENED BY FOREIGN IMPORTS, WHICH NOW 

CONTKUL~ APPROXIMATELY JO' OF WINE CONSUMPTION ANIJ OBVIOUSLY THE 

CALIFORNIA WINtS. 

THE SEVEN PLt::NARY tH.TAlL WlNEI<IES lN Tii£ ~TATE LACK PUliLIC KECOGNlT!UN 

AND AWARENESS. MO~T PEOPLE WHEN YOU MENTION NEW JEKS~Y WINE, THEY 

WEKEN'T AWARE THAT NfW JEkEY HAU ITS OWN WIN~S. UESIUES, THE PKOBLEM 

IS COMPOUNuEU BY OUR LACK UF OUTLET ANU FACILITIES ESPECIALLY IN NUKTH 

ANU C£NTKAL NEW JEKSEY. lHE ECONUNIC BASE OF MANY OF OUR WINERIES 

PRECLUDES BEING A~LE TU CU~PET~ FINANCIALLY OR TO EMPLOY ~ARKETIN~ 

STRATEGIES AGAli~ST FOREIGN !Jv1POiHS o,\ TilE LARGER OUT-OF-STATE DOI''IESTIC 

LHNERH.S. 

IF, Wl, AS A NE~ JERSEY INOUSTKY ARE TU SUR~IVE AND HOPEFULLY REGAIN 
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OUR POSITION WITH THE WINt CONSUMING PUBLIC, THEN NEw ~TRATEGIES ANu 

ASSISTANCE lS NEC~SSARY TO PROVIUE THE MAKKETlNG ANU A~AKENESS 

NECESSARY TO COMPETE WITH LARGER WINERIES. 

0~ Dl~EM~ER 17, l~ij~, GOV~KNOR THOMAS KEAN PROCLAIMED THAT IT WAS 

IMPORTANT FOR THE STATE TO RECOGNIZE THE NEW JERSEY WINE INDUSTRY ANU 

~ONTRIBUTE TU GKEATER PUBLIC AWARENE~S AND PROVIOE A~SISTANCE TO THE 

INuUSTRIES' GROWTH. 

IT 1S FOK THES~ REASUN~, WE CuhE TO A~~ YOU TO CO~~IDER R~COMMENDING 

AMENUlNG THE 11£0 Huu~E STATUTE (J~:l-4J) INTEkEST IN ~OTH BREWEkY, 

DISTILLERY OR wHO~ESALING, ETC., ANU IN RETAILINb, PROHIBITED. 

WE KfCOGNilE THAT THIS ~TATUTE WAS ~kEATEO IN ORDER TO PROTECT THE 

PUBLIC FKOM LARGE lNTEkESTS BEING AbLE TO CONTkOL THE CHAlN UF 

PROUUCTION AND DISTRIBUTION WHICH COULU CREATE MONOPOLIES, POSSIBLE 

PRICE-FIXING, ANTI-COM~ETITIVE ACTIVITIES AND EXCLUUlNb COMPETITIVE 

uRANU~. 

HUWt~Ek, AN AMENDMENT, WHICH WOULD ALLOW A NEW JERSEY WINERY TU BE 

ELIGIULE TO SEEK ANO PURCHASE A PLtNARY RETAIL CONSUMPTION LICENSE 

(CLA~S C) TO BE CONUUCTEU AS A BUNAFIUE RESTAURANT, WOULU O~EN UP 

NUMEROUS AVENUES OF MAkKETING OPPORTUNITIES FO~ US. 

FOK EXAMPLt, SUCII AN A~ENuMENT, WOULU ALLOW ~E TU PuRCHASE A PLENAKY 

~tTAll CuNSUM~TlUN LlCLNSt FOR U~E AT MY RESTAURANT LOCATED ON-SITE AT 

THL WlNEkY. PKOMOTlN~ Of THt R~STAURANT AS A FULL SERVICE FACILITY 
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WOULD AFFORD US THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXPOSE PATRONS TO NEW JERSEY 

PROUUCTS WHO UNDER NORMAL CONDITIONS MibHT NOT CONS1U£K VISITINb OUk 

ESTABLISHMENT. 

lN AUUlTlUN, OUk AU1LITY TO ~E ELIGIBLE FUR THE PURCHA~E OF A LlCENSt 

wuULU GIVE US UTH~R VEHICLES FOR EXPOSING NEW JERSEY PRODUCTS THAT 

PRESENTLY ARE NOT AFFOROEU TO US. OFf-SITE RESTAURANT OWNERSHIP WOULD 

ALLO~, WITH A NE~ JERSEY IN~ENTORY, ALL OUR NEW JERSEY VITNERS WITH AN 

OPPORTUNiTY FUR PKOUUCT SAMPLI~b ~y THE PU~LIC, PREVIOUSLY UNAVAILABLE 

TO THEM. 

A ktSTAURANT WOULD GIVE THE WlNEKY AN OPPORTUNITY TO HAVE PEOPLE TASTE 

PROUUCT FOR THE FIRST TI~1E lN AN APPROPRIATE SETTING ••• WINE WITH ~EAL. 

WINE IS A NATURAL BEVERAGE WITH MEAL. IT ENHANCES THE TASTE OF FOOU. 

l AM CObNIZANT THAT LEGISLATION UF THIS NATURE WOULU REUUI~E A 

RESTKICTION WHICH WOULU NUT ALLO~ A NEW JERSEY VITNER TO SELL HIS 

BUSINESS TO AN OUT-OF-STATE WHOLESALER OR SUPPLIER. SINCE, WE BELIEVE 

SO STRUNbLY lN THE NEEU FU~ TH!S AMENUMENT TU AlU OUR lNUUSTKY, THAT A 

KESTRlCTlUN Of THIS NAIURE WUULU UE MUST ACCEPTAULE TO US. 

THERtFOkE, WE RESPECTFULLY AS' YOU Tu blVE STRONb CONSIDERATION TO 

THIS PR£~S1Nu ISSUE FACING US. 
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Assemblyman John W. Markert 
District 39 
372 Kinderkamack Rd. 
Westwood, N. J. 07675 

Dear Assemblyman Markert: 

DONATO D'ONOFRIO 
DOVER MALL - RTES. 166 & 37 

TOM!.. ~IVER, NEW JERSEY 08753 
(201) 349-2710 

August 12, 1983 

I have been active in the food and liquor industry in the State of New Jersey 
since 1947 (36 years). During this time, I have been a liquor license holder in 
several locations and as a holder of a "C" license I became active in the 
package liquor sales .sector of the industry. 

As your are aware, a "C" licensee is entitled to both privileges; that is the 
sale of alcoholic beverages for on and off premises consumption. Since he is 
granted both of these privileges, he therefore is subject to exceptionally 
high fees for same. The law specifically reads that _package goods may be sold 
in a public bar room area. There is no prohibition to package goods being 
displayed on the floor or on gondolas or shelving. During the past fifteen years 
we have had regulations and policies instituted by various Directors with reference 
to floor displays and gondolas. At cettain times, gondolas were allowed to 
display merchandise as long as they were no further than three feet from perimeter 
walls. Then, changes were made where only a certain percentage of goods could be 
displayed with reference to floor area. Later on, a Director instituted the policy 
that a formula of the total licensed premises would have to be reviewed and a 
percentage utilized for gondolas and counter space. Also, the Director revised 
the formula for the bar room area. In order to comply under the old rules, it 
was only necessary to have a six stool bar, now it was necessary to build a bar 
which would accomodate approximately thiry-five stools. To further complicate 
and confuse this issue, the Director also implemented the policy which provided that 
when a licensee who had the privilege of displaying goods on the floor moved or 
relocated, he would lose that privileg~ and could not display any merchandise. 

I was one of the licensees who relocated his premises (approximately 600 feet from 
the old location) and I am now confronted with utilizing areas in two shopping 
center locations which command high rents per square foot and I must now adhere 
to the previous Director's formula so that I have a thirty-five stool bar and a 
floor area I cannot use. 
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To further illustrate these inconsistencies, I am enclosing several photos. The 
photos marked 'A' is of one location with a thirty-five stool bar and the open 
floor area which cannot be utilized. The 'B' photos is of the most recent 
relocation mentioned in previous paragraph with a thirty-five stool bar and a floor 
area that cannot now be utilized for the sale of packaged goods but which was 
approved in its former location. The 'C' photo shows a location which had received 
written approval in 1974 from the ABC Board and is still operating legally and 
is selling package goods from gondolas. All of these locations operate under a 
"C" (Plenary Retail Consumption) License. 

Considering todays economy and the competition, this restriction has certainly 
been unfair to the "C" license holders in the State of New Jersey. I appreciate 
·the competitive nature of todays business but by limiting the "C" licensees under 
the existing regulations and taking into consideration the high cost of rent, 
utilities and overhead, we are unable to operate profitably. Also, there is the 
fact that the "C" licensees have invested hundreds of thousands of dollars in the 
acquisition of said license and pay for this privilege on an annual basis. 

I enclose also correspondence from my attorney who pursued this issue in 1980. He 
touches on several factual issues and also encloses excerpt from theN. J. Register 
which relates to floor displays. As you can see, it ha6 always been a major 
issue and was almost resolved. 

I respectfully request you and the Committee review this issue and assist the "C" 
licensees in obtaining the privileges they are entitled to and for which they 
pay on an annual basis. 

I wish to thank you and the members of the Study Committe for taking time out 
~o consider this most important issue. 

DD:mc 

Encl. 
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DAVID S. PILTZER 

Dan D'Onofrio 

PILTZER S PlLTZER 
~~,«£~ 

6 NORTH AVENU1E WEST 

CRANFORD, NEW JERSEY 07016 

1.2011272-3443 

August 10, 1983 

c/o Dan-D Incorporated 
Dover Mall 
Routes 166 and 37 
Toms River, N. J. 08753 

ANNE B. PILTZER 

Re: State Legislative Study Commission 

Dear Dan: 

In response to your recent telephone request for material 
to make a presentation of proposed broad package privilege 
changes at the next meeting of the above commission scheduled 
for August 18, 1983 in Hackensack, enclosed please find a 
copy of my letter of April 22, 1980 addressed to former ABC 
Director Joseph H. Lerner. Also enclosed is a copy of the 
present regulation of the ABC dealing with this subject. It 
is known as N.J.A.C. 13:2-35.1 through 35.6. 

I am further enclosing a copy of 12 N.J.R. 343(b) of the 
June 5, 1980 issue of the New Jersey Register, which contains 
on page 345 a proposed amendment to the enclosed broad package 
privilege rules which would accomplish what you now seek. As 
you know, Lerner never followed through to adopt these pro
posed changes~ Under the law, he had one year in which to do 
so, after which the proposal expired. Accordingly, the pro
posal would have to be made anew now and republished in the 
New Jersey Register. 

Please call me if you have any questions concerning this 
matter. 

Very truly yours, 

DSP:mfw 

Enc. 

2lx 

' .. 



-.. 

DAVID S. PILTZER 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

PILTZER 8 PI2:R 
~~C?'d~ 

NATIONAL lANK OF NEW JEII.S!Y SUILDINC 

6 NOllTH AVENUE WEST 

CR.ANFOJ>.D, ).I£W JEJl.SEY 07016 

(201) 272·340 

Apr:il 22, 1980 

Director Joseph H. Lerner 
Division of Alcohol BeveraRe Control 
Newark International Plaza 
u. s. Routes 1-9 
Newark, N. J. 07114 

Re: Pinewald Villa Corp. 
Beachwood Shopping Center 
Rte. 9, Berkeley Township 
P.O. Bayville, New J~rsey 

08727 
License No. 1505-33-001-001 

Dear Director Lerner: 

ANNE B. PILTZER 

J & D Enterprises, Inc. 
Dover Mall 
Routes 166 and 37 
bover Twp., Ocean County 
P.O. Toms River, New Jersey 

08753 
License No. 1507-33-001-001 

This office represents the two above-captioned licensees, 
each of whom holds a plenary retail consumption license with
out the so-called "broad package privilege". These licensees 
request that certain changes be made in the Division rules 
which are the subject of the public hearing held by you today. 

N.J.A.C. 1~:2-35.5(1) prohibits a plePary retail consump
tion licensee without the broad package privilege from display
ing in a public barroom packaRe goods on floor gondolas or on 
shelving or floor displays not on the perimeter walls of the 
barroom. Our clients request that this portion of the rule 
be deleted in its entirety. 

The State Alcoholic Beverage Law, in N.J.S.A. 33:1-12.23, 
provides that a plenary retail consumption licensee without 
the broad package privilege may sell and display for sale al
coholic beverage package r.oods in the public barroom of the 
licensed premises. The statute specifically defines such a 
barroom as "a room containing a public bar, counter or similar 
piece of equipment desig..ne.d for and used to fac.i.li ta:t_EL.tbe ________ _ 
sale and dispensing of alcoholic beverages by the glass or 
other op~n receptacle for consumption. on the licensed premises". 
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PILTZER 8 PILTZER 
-lf~r~.J~~ 

Director Joseph H. Lerner - 2 - April 22, 1980 

There is no mention in the statute of any prohibition or re
striction concerning areas in a public barroom where package 
goods may not be displaxed. A~ Jonfl an n room contains a 
public bar as so described, it qualifies as a public barroom 
in which package goods may be displayed and .sold. 

Accordingly, there is no statutory basis for prohibiting 
the display of package goods other than on the perimeter 
walls in a public barroom. Additionally, there is no sound 
public interest basis for such prohibition. Today, in order 
for a retailer to compete with ·other retailers, he must 
stock and display thousands of different alcoholic beverage 
products. This is particularly so now that the deregulation 
of retail price control and advertising practices has taken 
effect. However, a retailer who cannot use floor space to 
display alcoholic b~verages is severely limited in his ability 
to merchandise his products to the public. The Division's 
requirement, in N.J.A.C. 13:2-35.1(1), that a public bar must 
occupy at least 15 per cent of the total square footage of a 
public barroom, further unduly limits the licensee's ability 
to display an adequate number of package goods in the barroom. 

The current rul~s force a retailer to construct or rent 
a barroom much greater than his actual needs in order to dis
play solely on the perimeter walls an adequate number of al
coholic beverages fo~ off-premises consumption. This results 
in extensive wasted, unused floor space and unnecessary extra 
overhead. In these inflationary times, it is completely un
reasonable for•the state to compel small businessmen to need
lessly expend large sums of money for something such as this, 
which serves no public purpose. There is no sound reason 
for prohibiting floor displays of package goods in a public 
barroom. Such prohibition is supported by neither legislation 
nor public policy. · 

The retailer should be freed from this anachronistic 
limitation so that he may meet the competition of other re
tailers. The Legislature has given all retail consumption 
licensees the right to sell package goods. The Division 
should not encumber this right with any artificial restric
tior:t. 

For all of these ·reasons;-tne·- riile-"In-questTon shouTa·oe-
abrogated at the earliest possible time. 

DSP:mfw 
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13:2-35.1 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL 

... 

SUBCHAPTER 35. 

13:2-35.1 Definitions 

SALE :ND DISPLA )~IF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN 
ORIGINAL CONTAINERS BY 
CONSUMPTION LICENSEES 
NOT HOLDING THE BROAD 
PACKAGE PRIVILEGES 

(a) For the purpose of this regulation: 
1. A public barroom shall be a room containing a public bar, counter or simi-

lar piece of equipment designed for and used to facilitate the sale and dispension 
of alcoholic beverages by the glass or other open receptacle for cons.wnption on 
the licensed premises, which public bar must occupy not less than fifteen per cent 
of the total square footage of said room; 

2. The public bar, counter or similar piece of equipment must be equipped 
with hot and cold running water, sink, drainboard, a sufficient number of bar 
stools (minimum of one for each three feet of bar perimeter), utensils and 
glassware for the making and serving of mixed drinks, and a sufficient number 
of opened bonles of alcoholic beverages for the service of drinks to be consumed 
upon the licensed premises, a substantial portion of the bar must be visible from 

all public entrances to-the barroom; 
3. The principal public barroom shalt be the room in which the main public 

b:u- is located; in detennining which public barroom shall constitute the principal 
public barroom. consideration shall be given to the nature of me operation and 
volume of akohoic beverage business for consumption on the licensed premises, 
the accessibility to the barroom, the size of the barroom, and the hours of opera-

tion. 

Historical Note 
Formerly Alcoholic Scvcra~c Control regulation )2 ,line I. 

13:2-35.2 Broad package privilege 
(a) No holder of a plenary retail consumption license or seasonal retail con-

sumption license, except as provided by N.J.S.A. 33:1-12.24 and 12.25 shall sell 
or display for sale any alcoholic beverage in the original container for off-premises 
consumption except from and in the bona fide public barroom of the licensed 
premises (the privilege to engage in such sale and display in other than such bar
room being known as the "Broad Package Privilege") unless: 

2-160 I 

Supp. 6-21-82 , 

~ .. : 

.. •· 

I I 13:2-35.3 

I. On or before June 30, 1948, the Direc;to.r of the Division of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control received from such a licenseq'~ municipal license issuing au
thority certification that such licensee, on May 27, jl948, sold alcoholic beverages 
in original containers for consumption off the lice~sed premises, either to the ex
clusion of sale for consumption on the licensed pr~mises or upon a portion of the 
licensed premises other than the public barroom; qr! 

2.1be Director of the Division of Alcoholic *everage Control has approved 
a verified petition, received on or before June 18, :1~48, by such a licensee alleging 
that on May 27, 1948, such licensee was not actu,ally engaged in the sale of al
coholic beverages in original containers for off-pre(nises consumption from a por
tion of the licensed premises other than the public bo/foom by reason of: 

i. Building alteration or construction in progress; 
ii. Prior destruction or loss of possession'of the licensed premises; or 
iii. Non-operation of the entire licensed brsiness, but that, prior to May 

28, 1948, such licensee had soldalcoholicbevc:rage~ in original containers for off
premises consumption from a portion of the license!d premises other than the pub
lic barroom or had actually undertaken alteration Jr construction of the licensed 

I 

premises to be licensed, intending and makin'g prqvision thereon for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages in original containers for off-premises consumption from a 
portion of the premises other than the public~· 

Historical Note 
Ponnerly Akoholic Bevcra&e Controi n:&U~Piion 32, nak 2. 

Case Notes 
Reacw.t widloul paac of Broad Pacbge Privilege. 

Entlislll .. imiml,lnc. "· Woodbury. ABC Bulletin No.121tS, lfm No. I (December II, 1975). 
l!uilding altaalion/conSinlction in pro&ress. _ - - -

Eutx c,: P«kate Stores in Au" II "·Newark, ABC Bulleti No. 2168, Item No. J (October 10, 
1974). 

Display Ollhadwt in bona fide pubiM: biuroom. I 
la,.}olutJOYpltWtUneski, ST .• ABCBulletiltNo.1165. lien\ No.4 (Seprember 13. 1974). 
E.swx Cty. P~Kbge StOTes Asbt v. Newark, ABC Bulletin ~o. 2095. hem No. I. (February 21 • 

J97l).1Cv'dpercuriil!n(N.J. App. Oiv. April17, 1974. ~-2028-72)(unreporte.J). 
l11 re T-Hou.u Liquors d: Btu #tiC •• ABC Bulleti11No. 2060'~1tem No.4 (June 22, 1972). 
lardwiuHOMJe,htc.,ABCBulletilfNo.2056. hem No.I~ 

1 
unc: 12,1972). 

13:2-35.3 Notation of privilege on li~ense certificate; daily 
certification : l · · 

(a) The issuing authority shall cause the followi~g notation to be made on the 
face of the renewal license certificate of each hold~r of a license which includes 
tbe"Broadpackage privilege" asset forth in N.J.A.q. 13:2-35.1: 

i 
nus license bears the "Board package pri~ilege" pursuant to P.L. 
1948, ch.98 (N.J.S.A. 33:1-12.23 and N.J"t"C. 13 :2-34)". 

2·161 I 
I Supp. 6-21-82 
! 
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---------------------
(b) 

LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY 
DIVISION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 
CO!'I'TROL 

Propo&ed Amt>ndmente to Oivi11ion'11 Rulea 

I ,, 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
DIVISION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL 

TRANSIT INSIGNIA NO ........•.. 
EXPIRES [APRIL 30), AUGUST 31, lt ..... . 

r 

13:2-20.14 Term of transit insignia; renewal 
:All transit insignia and special transportation permits 

e~pire on [April 30) August :n following their issuance 
upless previously terminated by order of the director or 
br surrender, revocation or expiration of the license. Re
n~wals must be applied for in the same manner aa new 
~ignia or permits.- . 

13:2·23.1 Serving minors and intoxicated perSODS 
: (a) No licensee shall sell, serve or deliver or allow, 
~rmit or suffer the sale, service or delivery of any 
alcoholic beverage, directly or indirectly, to any person 
Under the (age of 18 years,] legal age to purchase or eon
aume aleohoUe beverages, or allow, permit or suffer the 
cbnsumption of any alcoholic beverage hy any such person 
ill or upon the licensed premises. 
·(b) No licensee shall sell, serve or deliver or allow, -

permit or suffer the sale, service or delivery of any alco
hOlic beverage, directly or indirectly, to any person actu
ally or apparently intoxicated, or permit or suffer tbe 
consumption of any alcoholic beverage by any such person 
in or upon the licensed premises. 

: Ed. Note: Delete the current text of N.J.A.C. 13:2-23.8 
$:ad adopt the new text therein. 

l~:z..zu Zaatera Sta•cbrd Time chaage 
(a) 08 tbe lalt Suday of AprU of each year, at Z:OO A.M., 

Uae c:loeu ID each Ucensed premises will be advuc:ed oDe 
bour 1rl observaace of Eastern DayUgbt Snug Time. 111 
aay mwsiclpality havlag a eloslag bour later &hu Z:OO 
A.M., &he oftieial U.me will thea become S:OO A.M. aad &he 
boars olaale wW be calculated aeeordlacly. 

(b) On the lut Suday of October of each year, at Z:to 
Joseph H. Lerner, Director of the Division of Aleobollc A.M., the docks 1a each licenaed premises will be taraed 

Beverage Control in the Department of Law and Public oae bour 1a obtlervaace of Eastern Staadard Time. Ia 
Safety, pursuant to authority of N.J.S.A. 33:1-1 It eeq., muaicipaUtiea baviDI a dosiDg hour later than z:oe A.M., 
proposes to amend portions of th.a DivisioD'a rules. t.be cloc:u wW be AmmecUately ret11111ed to 1:00 A.M. aad 

Full tezt of the proposal follows (additions indicated bl boun of aale wW be caieula&ecl aecontiag!J. 
boldface thus; deletions indicated tn brackets [thus)). (e) Ill either eaae, (a) or (b), llceD.Sed premises ll.avillg 

elo.illg hours Gl Z:OO A.M. or earlier, will be uaffected. 
1S:2-4.3(a) 1. A fee of ($50.00) 155.00 ill euh, money order 
or certified check drawn to the order of Division of Alco- U:Z.%3.11 ProbDtlted pntmotlou 
holic Beverage Control; and ·(a) No Uceue or registnat privileged to aen or 1011clt 
l3::H.9 Refund of fees t.be sale of alc:oboUc beverages withJD &hll State abaD, 

U the application for new or renewal license ia deDled dlreetly or ladlrectly, allow, permit or ader any praetiee 
for any reason whatsoever or withdrawn statutory refUIId or promot:loa that: 
of 90 per cent of the fee deposited with the municlpality 1. Offen Go the pubUe at large unU.m.lted avaUabWty of 
shall be made by said municipality to the applicant. The ~Y alcoJJoUc beverage for a set price; or 
remaining 10 per cent shall be deemed an investigatloD · 1. Offen to a patroa or eouumer a tree drink, gift, 
fee and shall be retained by the municipality. The ($50.00) ..-tae or uythlag of value, conditioned upon the purchase 
ass.oo fee accompanying the supplemental appUcatioD abaU of an aleohoUe beverage or product, except braadec! or 
be retained by the director. ..-lque gla11ware or aouvea.l.n l.a couectloa with a abagle 
13:2-20.ll(b) In lieu of affix.i.ng the insignia in the manner ~urebaae; or 
prescribed in subsection (a) of this section, it may be. _ 1. Reqa.lrea or allow• a coa~umer to -prepurchase more 
carried in the vehicle while ~ngaged in ~e ~~~tJt?.u ----~ll 011e drink or pr,:ldu~t at a tlme vla tickets, tokeu, 
of alcoholic beverages, provided _B.Il- inscnption _15 pam~ . ____ .admissloll feea, two for one, or &he lUte, as . a cond.itloa 
on the exterior -ol. the body of the vehicle on the left side for entry IDto a Uceased premises or as a requlremeat for 
thereof, clearly visible at all times, which inscription &baD, aervlce or entert.abunent thereon. 
in letters not less than one inch in height and of proper 
and proportionate width, indicate the number of the current 
insignia and the date of its expiration in form • follows 
(inserting the appropriate number and year): 

13:2-23.21 Storage of alcoholic beverages 
No licensee shall store any alcoholic beverage except 

at his licensed premiles, or at a public warehouse licensed 

<CITE 1% N.J.R. KJ) 
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under the alcoholic be~· la•, or at other premlsea 
pursuant to apecial permit ·.ficllt'.Obtained from the Director 
of the Division of Alcobolic ~verage Control, provided, 
however, that nothing herem ·contained shall prohibit the 
storage of alcoholic beverages by a licensee upon the 
formerly licensed premises for a period not exceeding 
five days subseqnent to the effective date of the transfer 
of the license to other premises[.) or for a period not to 
exceed 72 hours following delivery at the Uceued premlaes 
of a fellow member of a cooperative purcbuing a1reemen& 
pursuant to subchapter 26. 

13:2·24.llbl l3. Price changes from time to time wbere 
changes are in response t.o changing conditions affecting the 
market for or the marketability of alcohoUc beverage 
products, such as, but not limited to, actual or imminent 
deterioration of perishable products, obsolescence of aea
sonal products, distress sales pursuant to court order, or 
sales in good faith in discontinuance of busiDess in the 
product concerned.] 

Ed. Note: Delete the current text of N.J.A.C. 13:2-24.5 aDd 
replace it with new text below. 

13:2·24.5 SuppUer priciag aad marketlDg laforma&loa 
,(a) Every manufacturer, suppUer, wiDery, brewer, im· 

porter, blender or rectifier ia&ending to seD alcoholic bev· 
erages to wholesalers or distributors wlthiD Uaia State alaall: 

1. For a period or three years ma!ntaln on ita Uceuecl 
premises or other principal place of buslness made lmowa 
to the Division iD a readily retrievable fasbloa piU'Iaul &o 
subchapter 29: 

l. A "HJstorical Price List," which sbaD ceaa&aba &be 
prices at which all product.& by braDd, type, proof, age 
and size were offered for sale to the trade, iaclaslve of all 
discounts, allowances or difterentials; and 

U. A "Marketing Manual," which shall coatalD, by cate
gory, on a chronological basil, aU services, facUlties, 
equipment, advertising and promotloul items aad pro
grams offered to the trade or consumen; aad 

~. By the first clay of the moath precedlag &be moath for 
which they are to become deetlve, make aY&Uable to aU 
its wholesalers or dlstribu&on Ita carrea& prices, lacluive 
of aU discounts, allowances or dltfereatiall; aad 

S. Prior to any sale or clelJvery of cUatWed aplrU alcolaoUe 
beverage&, or &DDuaUy by AaJV.St 1 of eacb year, 81e wit.b 
the Division a writ&eD IY&emeat , uader oatil alllrmiag 
that its prices to New Jersey wbolesalen ud dlatrlbat.on 
have not been and will not be a price or dlscouat higher 
than the lowest price or lower than tlae laJ&:bett dlacoua~ 
which bas been or wUI be offered to Ill)' wholesaler or 
distributor or state agency (which operates retaU stores) 
lD aay other State of &be Ullited States or Ill the Dlstrlct 
of Columbia. 

13:2·24.6(a)3. 1. Prices, inclusive of all dllcounta, allow· 
ances and differential& and other terma of sale, at which 
all product& (except private label products owaed by a 
retail licensee) are offered for sale to retailers duriDg the 
calendar month following filing; and 

ii. The correct brand or trade Dame of the product, ita 
nature and type, size and age and proof of alcobollc COD· 
tent when stated on the label, tbe 1tandard number of unit 
containers per standard case and the capacity of each 
unit container. 
· 4. Except with respect to sales of malt alcoholic bever

ages, [T]the Current Price List sball be filed with the 
Division of Alcoholic .Beverage Control DO later than the 
f15th] 7th day of each calendar month, shall become effec
tive the first day of the following month and remain ef. 
fective for that month. 

(CITE 12 N.J.R. 344) . 

S. Tbe prices contained tbereiD shall be [flied] eatablislsed 
independently by each individual [filer] wholesaler or dis
tributor and except for malt beverages, no amendments 
or changes (except upon approval of the Director to correct 
bona fide clerical errors) shall be made therein prior to 
filing of the next monthly price list. 

6. No manufacturer, supplier or wholesaler shall offer 
for &Ale, sell or deliver to aiJY retailer and no retailer shall 
aoeept delivery from any manufacturer, supplier or whole
saler of any alcoholic beverage upon terms other than those 
aet forth iD the seller's "Current Price List." • • 

?. [The] Flied Current Price Lists shall be a public record 
and nothing herein shall preclude any licensee selling 
alcoholic beverages to retailers from providing it directly 
to ret.aUera b)' mail, through sales personnel or through 
publication in trade journals. 

13:2-24.7 Marketing initiatives 
Subject to ~e foregoing provisions o! this subchapter, a 

Uceued or reptered mallufacturer, supplier, importer. 
wholesaler or diStributor may fun1ish or provide advertising 
or promotional materials to any retail licensee, except that 
samples may be provided to retailers, and donations of 
alcoboUc beverages made to qualified orgaaizations, only 
within the terms and conditions of a special permit first 
obtained from the Director, issued upon a petition estab
lisblng and defining its need and use and verifying that 
all taxes have been paid thereon. 

13:2-24.8 Saleis be1ow cost; prohibited 

(a) Notwithstanding tber provisions of this subchapter, 
DO wholesaler, distributor or other licensee, privileged to 
H1l to retailers, and Do retail licensee, shall offer to tell 
or aeD alcoholic beverages at a price below "cost" except 
for authorized samples aad donations pursuant to N.J.A.C. 
13:2-24.7 or upon petition to and approved by the Director, 
punuut to a bona fide "close out" sale. [consistent with 
N.J.A.C. 13:24U(b)(3).) 

(b) '"Coat" Is defined u tbe actual proportionate invoice 
price IDd freight charge to a distributor or wholesaler and 
the actual prOportionate iDvoiee price to a retailer, as the 
cue 1D8f be, of any given container of an alcoholic bever
ase product, plus applicable State and Federal taxes. Tbe · 
ac:tual iDvoice price shall be determined by the "last·iD· 
firat-out" method applying generally accepted accountiDg 
priDdp1el. . 

13:2-SU [Tr~e Buyer] Combination and tied sales 
(a) NotwiU.Standing other provisions of this subchapter, 

no (manufa~urer. registraDt, wholesaler. distributor or 
Uceuee prlvUeged to sell alcoholic beverages to whole
aalera, distributors, retailers, or other) lieenaee[s in this 
State) lball aell or offer to aeD any alcoholic beverage 
product upon; terms that permit purchase of that product, 
by lile aDd price, only wbeD purchased iD conjunction 
with a different product or the same product in a different 

••• 
[(b) Except for sales to retailers of malt alcoholic 

beverages; no wholesale licensee shall offer to ..n or 
aeD any aJ.coholic beverage product in combination with 
another product. For purposes of this subsection, a sale 
of products which are identical, except for size, in mixed 
loti (a mixed size sale) is not a combination sale.) 

[(C:)] (b) Subject to N.J.S.A. 13:1·12, [N]oothiDg herein 
shall preclude a retail licensee from selling or offering for 
sale any product in combination with another product at 
a single unit price, provided that such unit price shall 
exceed the cost of the combined products and the individual 

26x 
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unit price of each combined product is provided iD ad
vertising and shell priclDg. 

Ed. Not: Delete current text of N.J.A.C. 13:2-24.10. 

· [13:2-24.11] 13:%·24.10 Advertising and Consumer Protection 
(a) No manufacturer, importer, registrant, wholesaler, 

distributor or retailer shall include in any advertising 
material or in any advertisement, directly or indirectly, 
any statement, illustration, design, device, name, symbol, 
sign or representation that: 

1. Is false or misleading; 
2. ls obscene; 
3. Contains the name of or depiction of any bib~al char

acter or religious character or symbol; 
4. Portrays a minor or child or items or symbols which 

are generally associated with children. or which tends to 
induce minors [or) tc purchase alcoholic beverages; 

s. Tends to create or give the impression that the use of 
an alcoholic beverage has curative or therapeutic effects 
or enhances athletic prowess; 

6. Offers an alcoholic beverage product for sale to coD· 
sumers which is not immediately available to reasonable 
supply at the price, size and age specified, unless adver
tised at a stated .limited quantity; 
. (7. offers any alcoholic beverage product in its original 
container for sale, by any means whataoever, that physi
cally or conceptually joins, ~r connects or comb~es it to 
the advertisement or promotlon of any non-alcoholic bever· 
age product except non-alcoholic accessory beverages; or 

8. offers any alcoholic beverage product for sale by or 
on behalf of licensees not identically owned, except as COD· 
sistent with subsection (b) of this section. 

(b) No manufacturer, importer, registrant, wholesaler, 
distributor or retailer may advertise in any form or maDDer 
whatsoever Wlless that individual licensee has paid tor 
such advertising except that consistent with Title 33 and 
Regulation promulgated thereunder, and its "Marketing 
Manual," e manufacturer or wholesaler, in a product ad· 
vertisement, may specify the availability of a partic:ular 
alcoholic beverage product or products at identified rttaU 
outlets, provided that no reference is made to a price at 
which the products will be or are offered for sale;] 

1. Ofien; alcoholic beverage prlclDg I.DformaUoa Ia 
affiliation with other nou-idenUcally ow:aed liceoaeec Ill a 
communication which falls w truthfully diacloae and pro
minently indicate the Identity of the illdividuaJ Ucenaee 
who established the pricing informaUen, ud that the 
specific prices and products featured may not be avaUable 
at aU buaineues represented or lndicatecl a1 belllg aiii.Ua&ed. 

13:2-26.l(a)6. All purchases through or by cooperative 
agreement shall [be made only on terlllJi requirinl pay
ment upon delivery, or iD the case of multiple delivery, 
upon initial delivery or earlier; andJ be reduced &o wrlt:blg, 
signed by t.be wholesaler and each llldlvidual partlclpatblg 
member of the cooperative, ud require payment upoll de
livery or prior thereto or upon credit terms conslltellt with 
subchapters %4 and l9. Such credit terms may include the 
posting of a bond, the provi&.lon for a guarantor or surety, 
the joint and severable UabUlty of each particlpatl.nc co
operative member, or such other auurances of paymeat 
as may be mutuaUy agreeable between the wbole1aler 
and the cooperat.lve members. 

13:2-26.Ha)9. No licensed party to a cooperative agree
ment shall co-mingle inventory, funds or other uaets[; 
and) l.neonsistellt with this subchapter ud N.J.A.C. 13:Z· 
:3.21; and 

10. An;o,- purchase or transfer in violation of Title S3 or 
the regulations promulgated thereunder, ahall be a viola
tion by all members of the cooperative purchase agree
ment. 

11. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require the serv
icing of any cooperative agreement with quantity or cash 
discounts if [multiple deliveries to licensees are required 
for an individual order) there exists no corresponding 
justification for the differential pursuut to N.J.A.C. 13:2· 
Z4.1fb)(l). 

(b) No cooperative buying group may participate in 
any business transaction permitted by subsection (a) of • ~ 
this section unless the cooperative is registered with 

· the Division in a form prescribed by the Director. Such 
registration shall include: 

1. The identity and State issued license numbers of the 
members; [and] 

2. A copy of the cooperative agreement{. 
· (c) No licensee shall, directly or indirectly, participate 

in any cooperative purchase unless the cooperative is 
registered pursuant to this regulation.): and 

3. The Issuance of a special permit by the Direcwr, 
which shall be renewable annually oa Aagust 1. 

d. Note: Delete current text of N.J.A.C. 13:2·33.3. 

13:2-35.2 roa package privilege 
C a) No holder of a plenary retail consumption license or 

seasonal retail consumption license, [except as approved 
by N.J.S.A. 33:1-12.24 and 12.25] shall sell or display for 
sale any alcoholic beverage in the original containet for. 
off-premises consumption except from and in the bona fide 
pri.Dcipal public barroom of the licensed premises, unless 
[(]the privilege to engage in such sale and display in 
other than such bat-room [being known as the "Broad 
Package Privilege") unless:) has beea acquired pursuant 
tc N.J.S.A. 33:1·12.%3, 12.24 and 12.25 (commonly known 
as the "Broad Package Privilege"}. 

[1. On or before June 30, 1948, the Director of the Di
vision of Alcoholic Beverage Control received from such 
a licensee's municipal license issuiug authority certifica
tion that such licensee, on May 24, 1948, sold alcoholic 
beverages in original containers for consumption off the 
licensed premises, either to the exclusion of sale for cen
sumption on the licensed premises or upon a portion of 
the liceDSed premises other than the public barroom ; or 

2. The Director of the Division of Alcoholic Beverage 
Control hAs approved a verified petition, received on or 
before June 18, 1948, by such a liceDsee alleging that on 
May 24, 1948, such licensee was not actually engaged in 
the sale of alcoholic beverages iD original containers for 
oif·premiees consumption from a portion of the licensed 
premises other than the public barroom by reason of: 

i Building alteration or construction in progress; 
li. ~ior destruction or loss of possession of the liceDSfd 

premlSes; or 
ill. Non-operation of the entire licensed business, but 

that, prior to May 28, 1948, such licensee had sold alcoholic 
beverages in original containers for oft'-premises consump-
tion from a portion of the licensed premises other than 
the public barroom or had actually undertaken alteration 
or construction of the licensed premises to be licensed, 
intending and making provision thereon for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages in original containers for off-premises 
consumption from a portion of tbe premises other than the 
public barroom.] 

Ed. Note: Delete current text of N.J.A.C; 13:2-35.4, 
13:2·35.5, 13:2-35.6 and 13:2·36.2. 

(CITE 12 N.J.R. 345) 
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